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Letter from the Chairman

These are exciting times at Unisys. In 1997, our operations improved significantly.

We more than tripled our net income, before one-time charges, and grew revenue.

We sharply increased our shareholder value and dramatically decreased our debt.

We tightened our strategic focus on providing solutions for two markets:

information services and enterprise-class servers. And I stress the term “solutions”

because our business is helping clients become more successful by using

technology to help them solve their business problems.

I joined Unisys last September because I believed this was a company poised

to capture opportunities in vital markets. Since then, I have immersed myself in

the business. I’ve visited hundreds of customers. I’ve met with more than 12,000

employees. More than ever, I’m confident we can unleash our potential this year

to accelerate profitable revenue growth. We can do it by renewing our focus on

customers, by taking the actions necessary to be an employer of choice, by

continuing to reduce our debt and our overhead costs, and by improving our

business execution. Fueling my own optimism is the enthusiasm that our recent

gains have rekindled in our employees and clients—an enthusiasm that is

energizing Unisys and driving our future success.

Launching from a solid basis
We ended 1997 with the momentum to propel us confidently into the new year.

Net income before one-time charges grew to $199.0 million in 1997 from $61.8

million before a one-time charge in 1996. Before the charges, the company earned

46 cents per share in 1997 compared to a loss of 34 cents per share in 1996. Overall, revenues grew 4% to

$6.6 billion, cash flow from operations increased by almost $475 million, and we closed the year with

more than $800 million in cash. Strong sales of our ClearPath enterprise servers and steady business

improvement within our information services business were key factors in our enhanced performance.

Including one-time charges amounting to $1.1 billion, we reported a loss for the year of $853.6 million

or $5.30 per share. The charges will help accelerate growth in 1998. First, we wrote off almost $900 million

in goodwill. The goodwill was principally related to the Sperry/Burroughs merger in 1986 and represents

the difference in price paid at the time over the value of the net assets acquired. Since that time, the

marketplace has continued to move from proprietary technology to an open-systems environment,

and the goodwill no longer has value. Second, we intend to discontinue manufacturing and assembling

personal computers and low-end servers—which we’ll outsource more cost efficiently to a third party.

Finally, a portion of the charge, approximately $42 million, was related to the early conversion of

convertible notes in December, reflecting my pledge to reduce debt.

Debt reduction remains a top priority. Lower interest expense means more cash to invest in growing

our business, providing opportunities for our people, and enhancing shareholder value. On the first day

I joined the company, I committed to reduce our debt by $1 billion by the year 2000. Acting quickly to

take advantage of sharp increases in our stock price during the fourth quarter, we completed two note

To Our Stakeholders

Lawrence A. Weinbach,
Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer
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conversions amounting to $616 million. In February 1998, we retired an additional $198 million in debt. In

total, we have already driven down debt by $814 million—attaining more than 80% of our goal in just four

months. We’ll save more than $58 million in interest expense in 1998 and will continue to aggressively attack

the approximately $200 million in debt remaining to reach our goal.

Fueling growth
We entered 1998 well positioned to seize new opportunities. Information services continues to expand rapidly

as the public and private sectors look for ways to apply technology to reach their business goals. Growth in

this environment has not been the problem; profitable growth has been our challenge. In 1997, our information

services business achieved operating profitability in the fourth quarter and grew revenue 5% for the year.

We’re growing smart. We’re sharpening our focus on the market segments where we can add the most

value. To win—and effectively serve—new customer engagements, we’re leveraging our proven solutions

for business-critical applications. We’re also drawing on well-established capabilities in large-scale systems

integration and outsourcing projects. Each new contract strengthens our position as a premier service

provider in areas that include financial services, government, communications, transportation, and the

commercial sector. Meanwhile, we’re selectively developing new offerings, like a suite of services that address

a promising trend to deploy Microsoft Windows NT across the enterprise. We look for double-digit revenue

growth and continued improvements in profitability from information services in 1998.

Another services market already in demand—distributed computing support services—touches all our

strategic industries and more. This represents a great opportunity for us because networks of distributed

servers, PCs, and laptops are increasingly functioning as business-critical systems. We foresaw this trend

and built a reputation for world-class network integration, innovative desktop services, and seamless global

support. As a result, our growing revenues in distributed support services have more than offset declines

in our proprietary maintenance business.

Our challenge in this business is to manage the shift in our profit margins. To improve these margins

and propel growth, we’re concentrating on high-end network and desktop consulting services and network

management services where our specialized skills add value. In 1997, we launched Unisys NetWORKS

Services, a comprehensive suite of remote network management services delivered from our command

centers in the United States and England. Distributed computing support services, too, should see double-

digit revenue increases in 1998 as well as improvements in profitability.

On the hardware front, we are dedicating our resources to enterprise-class servers and associated

operating software. Our extensive experience in developing mainframe systems to run business-critical

applications is an extremely valuable asset and a clear differentiator for Unisys. We’ll continue to enhance

our powerful family of ClearPath servers. ClearPath allows our customer base to protect its investments in

proprietary applications while integrating open applications in the enterprise NT environment. We’ve sold

more than $1.5 billion of ClearPath servers since their introduction in 1996. And we expect to see continued

strong shipments of ClearPath in 1998 and another solid year of profitability.

At the same time, we believe the next milestones in enterprise-class computing will take place within

the emerging market for systems based on Microsoft’s Windows NT operating environment. In 1997, we

announced a partnership with Microsoft as well as other companywide initiatives to bring mainframe
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attributes to the Windows NT platform. We introduced Windows NT servers that are among the industry

leaders in price/performance. We’ve also committed to delivering a suite of “middleware” products that equip

these systems to handle the demands of electronic commerce, the Internet, and high-volume transaction

processing. Complementing our technology portfolio are Windows NT professional and support services

that will help clients get the most value from this emerging open technology.

Strengthening the essentials
As we define and pursue our targeted markets, we cannot lose sight of our most valued assets: clients and

employees. We’re listening with undivided attention to our clients, who have sent us a clear message:

approach us as one organization, one Unisys, that can rally the full array of your various business groups to

meet my needs. We have listened and are working diligently to ensure that we go to market as a single, strong

solutions provider. And we will continue to listen.

Being externally focused, however, does not imply that our employees become less important. Quite

the opposite. Our employees hold the power—in their skills, their experience, their dedication, and their

enthusiasm—to satisfy customers. This is especially true because we obtain about 63% of our revenues

from services. It follows that we must become an employer of choice to attract and maintain the best talent

in the industry. Again, we have moved swiftly to feed the surge of energy at Unisys. We’ve changed policies,

reinstated benefits, and provided new opportunities for professional growth. We’re sending a clear signal

that management places a very high value on our employees.

As we set our priorities clearly on clients and employees, a third ingredient essential for growth is

beginning to revive: our reputation. The financial community is increasingly bullish about our prospects.

The press wants to talk to us. And the market research firms are eager to understand our strategy. In 1998,

we’ll be relaunching Unisys to the world—getting the word out that we’re proactive, focused, and eager to

help our clients succeed.

I hope I have conveyed my excitement about Unisys prospects. The former Chairman and CEO Jim

Unruh had the vision to transform Unisys from a proprietary mainframe vendor to a leading provider of

information services and open technology. He gave us a base on which to go forward, and we all thank him

for that. But we can’t relax for a second. We’re not satisfied. We must continue to control our costs and

generate positive cash flow while elevating customer and employee satisfaction to new levels. We must

continue to focus on markets where we can grow profitably and to streamline the way we go to market. Our

goal is to help our clients become more successful. This annual report presents 10 examples of how Unisys

solutions are improving business for our clients. Stories like these convince me that Unisys has what it takes

to be a real success story in the services and technology marketplace.

Lawrence A. Weinbach
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer

As we define and pursue our targeted markets,

we cannot lose sight of our most valued assets:

clients and employees.
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Q&AQ
Why did you come to Unisys, and why are you the right person for the job?

I came to Unisys because I saw a company that was positioned in the fastest-growing segments of our

economy—services and technology; was in the midst of a difficult transition; and had enormous potential

for growth. Unisys is a company with a very loyal customer base that has stayed with the company through

thick and through thin. My charter at Unisys—as it was in my previous position as managing partner-chief

executive at Andersen Worldwide—is to create sustained, profitable growth. With a loyal customer base,

I believe that we can grow the company by harnessing the full powers of the organization and its people.

Why do you claim 1997 was a successful year when you reported a net loss? 

If you look at a summary of our operational

performance for the year—revenue, net

income and earnings per share before the 

one-time charges, debt reduction, and cash

flow—we clearly made real progress in 1997.

The bottom-line losses were related to

one-time charges that will help us build

momentum and accelerate growth in 1998.

I view the situation this way: the $1.1 billion

write-off was mine; the earnings of 46 cents

per share from operations was the result of

hard work by our employees.

You come from a services environment.

Does that mean you will de-emphasize the technology component?

Absolutely not. After meeting with thousands of customers and employees as well as analysts, it’s clear that

Unisys competency in enterprise-class systems is a distinct competitive advantage in our targeted markets.

We have outstanding people, excellent technology, and a large and satisfied customer base. These assets are

critical both to our technology and services businesses—particularly as we move into new markets like

bringing enterprise attributes to the Microsoft Windows NT environment.

Then why are you getting out of the PC business?

We are not getting out of the PC business. We have chosen to outsource the manufacture and assembly of

PCs and low-end servers to a third party because this was not a profitable operation for us. We will continue

to provide customers with a full breadth of products—from notebooks, desktops, and low-end servers to

high-end servers and systems. While we plan to make the outsourcing change invisible to our clients, it will

provide us with additional resources for delivering strategic enterprise-class systems and solutions.

Financial Summary

Year ended December 31
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

1997 1996 1995

Revenue $6,636.0 $6,370.5 $6,342.3

Net income before special charges* 199.0 61.8 43.2

Net income (loss) (853.6) 49.7 (624.6)

Earnings (loss) per share 
before special charges* .46 (.34) (.45)

Earnings (loss) per share (5.30) (.41) (4.35)

Total debt at December 31 1,692.0 2,291.1 1,888.9

Interest expense 233.2 249.7 202.1

Cash flow from operating activities 383.5 (89.7) 97.7

*Special charges include one-time charges, an extraordinary item, and discontinued operations.
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You’re investing a lot of your future in the Windows NT market.

How will you differentiate Unisys from everyone else vying for this market?

Our competitors—mostly PC and server vendors—are pushing from the low end of the technology market

up. We’re at the top—with our expertise in mission-critical systems—coming down slightly to where

Windows NT is making its initial inroads into the enterprise-class market space. That’s a distinct advantage

for us. We also have the knowledge that comes from decades as a global leader in business-critical systems

integration and support. Armed with those capabilities, we’re best positioned to understand the unique

challenges and opportunities our clients face as they move into the world of Windows NT.

How will you support the investments of your existing client base 

if you’re so focused on developing Windows NT solutions?

We believe, over time, an open operating environment that supports mission-critical applications will be

the foundation of most enterprise computing. This is what our clients want. But they also want to protect

their existing investments. Therefore, our ClearPath systems—which integrate both open and proprietary

environments—are an investment priority. We are continuing to enhance the performance and usability

of the proprietary side of ClearPath. At the same time, we are adding more enterprise-class attributes to

Windows NT. And we’re more tightly integrating NT into the ClearPath Heterogeneous MultiProcessor

(HMP) operating system. These investments will preserve our clients’ freedom to choose the optimum

solutions as they move toward open computing environments.

Can you present one, solid Unisys brand while operating three independent businesses?

I’m committed that—no matter how we are organized internally—the world will see one strong Unisys

brand. We will continue to make changes to successfully attack the marketplace. Every successful company

must do that. But it will be incremental change. I’m not interested in a “change day,” where everyone stops

work in anticipation of a major reorganization and then spends months putting the new structure in place.

We must harness the momentum we have and continue to move forward with all eyes turned to our

customers’ needs.

You have stressed that Unisys must become an “employer-of-choice.” Can you elaborate?

Our ability to help our customers solve their business problems depends increasingly on the quality of our

people and how effectively they can tap the “knowledge capital” of the organization—built up from our

collective problem-solving experience, industry knowledge, training, and education. To attract and retain

quality people, Unisys needs to demonstrate that we are not just competitive with other companies in the

marketplace, but that we offer the kind of work environment where we seriously value our employees, are

willing and able to invest in them through training and professional development, and reward and advance

them for the kind of performance the marketplace demands from us. We are taking aggressive steps to

become this kind of employer-of-choice. Our customers and our stockholders—as well as our employees—

are the beneficiaries.



Unisys at a Glance

Information Services (page 8)

Solutions and services that help clients apply

technology to improve the performance of their

business-critical systems
•systems integration

•outsourcing
•industry-specific software solutions

for select markets
•document imaging

•year 2000 services
•services to apply

Microsoft Windows NT to
enterprise computing

Computer Systems(page 20)

Powerful hardware and software that are the 

basis of enterprise-class information systems—

including those developed for our established

platforms and Microsoft Windows NT
•enterprise-class servers

•network servers
•desktop and mobile systems

•systems software and middleware
•data and voice communications

•information storage solutions

Added value from key strategic alliances
•BEA Systems, Inc.

•Computer Associates
•Intel

•Microsoft
•Oracle

•SCO
•Tandem (a Compaq company)

•systems integrators
•independent software vendors

Special delivery
organizations

Unisys Federal Systems

delivers services, solutions, and systems

into the U.S. federal government.

Unisys Pacific Asia Americas

delivers services, solutions, and

systems to Pacific Asia, Latin

America, and Canada.

Related
Growth Markets

Our
Clients

•41 of the 50 largest banks
worldwide count on Unisys

systems.

•50% of the world’s checks are
processed on Unisys systems.

•Unisys banking solutions serve more than
two million bank users daily throughout

Latin America.

•200 airlines worldwide rely on Unisys
reservation systems.

•17 of the world’s top 25 airlines rely on
Unisys systems for passenger and cargo
reservations.

•Unisys solutions support more than
100 of the world’s airports.

•70 newspapers in 10 countries use 
Unisys publishing solutions.

$66B

$52B

$72B

$158B

$100B

$71B

$98B

$207B
Personal
Computers

Servers

Storage

Systems Software/
Application Tools

1997 2000

Source: IDC
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Added value from

key strategic alliances

•over 100 alliances for specific market segments
•Compaq
•Computer Associates

•Digital Equipment
•Hewlett-Packard

•Microsoft
•Oracle

•Sun Microsystems
•Tandem

•Wildfire

Support Services (page 14)

Services and products that help clients get the most

from their distributed network, desktop, and mobile

computing investments
•local- and wide-area network integration
•remote network management
•life-cycle desktop support services
•network and desktop consulting
•multivendor hardware/software maintenance
•computer supplies
•traditional hardware/software maintenance

Added value from key strategic alliances
•3Com

•Attachmate
•Bay Networks

•Cisco Systems
•Comdisco

•Compaq
•CompuCom

•MCI Systemshouse
•MicroAge

•Microsoft
•Newbridge

•Novell
•Sun Microsystems

•Tekdata
•Xylan

Related
Growth Markets

•65 of the world’s leading
telecommunications
companies in more than 
30 countries rely on Unisys
information solutions.

•Unisys helps its telecommunications
clients deliver more than 20 billion voice
and data messages each year.

•Unisys serves more than 1,500 government
agencies worldwide, including the U.S.
federal government and all 50 U.S. states.

•Unisys systems process more than 
250 million income tax returns annually
around the world.

•Criminal justice agencies use Unisys
systems to protect the lives and 
property of more than 55% of
the U.S. population.

•Unisys is the #1 vendor of retail
store management systems in
South America.

$63B

$34B

$28B

$78B

$48B

$44B Vertical Market Applications

Outsourcing

Systems Integration

1997 2000
Source: IDC

Related
Growth Markets

$6B

$16B

$14B

$56B

$7B

$22B

$22B

$61B Hardware Maintenance/
Software Support

Deskside Services

Network Support/
Management/Integration

Supplies
1997 2000

Source: IDC
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Unisys Information Services

A newsworthy solution

Reporters, editors,
artists, and prod-
uction specialists at
News International
have to work fast to
get the most inter-
esting news angle out
first. “By integrating 
the editorial and
production proces-
ses,” says Tom
Barton, Unisys team
leader (left), “Unisys
publishing solutions
can cut the time
between when a 
story is written 
and printed—that’s
invaluable when
closing the paper
against tight
deadlines.”



9

(that won’t stop the presses)
News International publishes some of the best-selling papers in the United Kingdom.

Its titles include The Sun (selling more than 3.8 million copies every weekday) and

News of the World (selling more than 4.3 million copies every Sunday). Owning these

popular titles, however, doesn’t insulate the company from the profound changes

rocking the international press market. People are dialing into the Internet to get

information almost real time. An exploding number of news sources are contending

for readers with far fewer hours at their disposal. Then there are the advertisers

looking at the Internet and other new media as potentially affording targeted

channels to reach key audiences. How does a daily paper compete?

News International decided that breakthrough Unisys publishing solutions

were the answer. Tying together every aspect of the editorial and production

processes, our systems make these processes accessible to reporters, editors, artists,

and production specialists via their workstations. The ability to work in a common

publishing environment shortens the time window between the written story and

the printed page—giving reporters a few extra hours to dig for information that

could scoop the competition. In addition, each reporter can get select incoming

news and archive material on his or her screen real time. Once composed,

newspapers can be made up both in their traditional printed form and

electronically for the Internet and World Wide Web.

“The complete integration and scalability of the solutions was one of the

major factors in our decision to select Unisys,” says Craig Mitchell, director of

Information Technology for News International.

News International now also has a tool to customize stories for local markets.

Small staffs of reporters in remote locations can tap into the master templates for

the day’s paper and add their own local stories—all online and real time. Within a

few hours, the final paper, with input from regional offices, is being enjoyed by

loyal readers throughout the country.

So how will News International address the challenges ahead? With greater

speed, flexibility, and customized news products.

News International adds to the growing list of 70 news
publishers around the world who have chosen Unisys
industry-leading publishing solutions. We’re delivering
equally powerful solutions based on years of experience and
advanced technology to the financial services, government,
communications, transportation, and commercial markets.

“We were impressed with
the level of commitment
Unisys brings to the 
publishing industry and
their willingness to work
with us to meet our needs.”
Craig Mitchell
Director of Information Technology
News International
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Unisys Information Services

Strategic sources
From Brisbane to the Great Barrier Reef to the Outback, the state of Queensland,

Australia, covers an area greater than Texas. As the largest provider of post-secondary

education in Queensland, the government’s Technical and Further Education (TAFE)

network extends its services to 120 campuses and training centers reaching some

400,000 vocational students. Now, a deregulated education market is intensifying

local and international competition for these students. TAFE, therefore, made a

strategic decision to outsource its entire information technology operations to

Unisys to gain some key competitive advantages.

“This agreement,” says Training and Industrial Relations Minister Santo Santoro,

“will lead to new and exciting opportunities for all TAFE institutes to promote their

programs in an increasingly global market where leading-edge technology can make

the difference between success and failure.”

While TAFE focuses on its core competency of providing quality education and

training, Unisys will manage TAFE’s central data systems as well as its administration

and student-enrollment programs. We’ll enhance TAFE’s local-area and wide-area

networks and support the more than 14,000 PCs on the networks. As a result, TAFE

staff and students will benefit from more efficient administration systems and faster

response times for computer-related “help-desk” assistance. Our expertise also will

enable TAFE to take its training wherever its students need it—in the home, in the

workplace, at remote sites, or overseas.

The relationship between TAFE Queensland and Unisys is based on a strategic

partnership in which we share the risks and rewards. Ultimately, TAFE expects to

save millions by eliminating the cost of maintaining its own IT resources. The agency

also expects to realize up to $20 million in savings over the next three years by

working with Unisys to develop and enhance business processes to improve the

organization’s efficiency.

“This innovative contract is an exciting and vital element in the strategic plan to

take TAFE Queensland into a new era of competitive service delivery,” says Santoro.

“By 2000, 30% of
IT outsourcing deals 
will include some business
processes, as the markets
for these services blend.”
Gartner Group
July 1997 IT Services Conference
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of knowledge

We enrich the solutions we deliver into key market sectors
with capabilities that are in increasing demand across all
industries. These include outsourcing, systems integration,
document imaging, year 2000, Internet, and Windows NT
services.

Above all, staff 
and students at 
TAFE Queensland’s
campuses must stay
focused on quality
education. “Our job 
in taking over the
information tech-
nology operations is
to eliminate some of
the distractions,”
explains Graeme
Hopgood, Unisys
engagement principal
(right). “For example,
we can simplify
enrollment and other
administrative tasks
or quickly provide
support when a PC
fails. We also can help
extend classrooms
beyond the traditional
campus to remote
locations.”
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Unisys Information Services

Facing an alarming increase in violent crime during the late ’80s and early ’90s, the

California legislature passed a bill in July 1994 designed to address the problem

statewide. Based on this legislation, the California Department of Justice established

the Violent Crime Information Network, or VCIN. Activated in July 1996, the

information system now provides state and local law enforcers with timely and

accurate information on violent, repeat offenders.

Prior to the system’s development, access to consolidated crime data was not

possible. Such information was maintained in a variety of California state and local

law enforcement databases that were not connected. The Department of Justice

looked to Unisys expertise to integrate this information into a central repository,

available statewide. Together, we built a powerful “relational” database that is used to

compile volumes of criminal-justice data for identifying, tracking, and monitoring

violent criminals in California. Using a VCIN workstation, this data can be searched

in an “ad hoc” method using any variety of data elements such as a vehicle make and

an individual’s physical appearance. Soon the system will be enhanced to include a

criminal’s “MO,” or typical way of committing a crime. VCIN also includes a

“tactical” database, which can be searched by the criminal’s name. This tactical file is

accessed up to 40,000 times each day from mobile terminals in police vehicles and

fixed terminals in law-enforcement agencies.

“We’ve developed an excellent system that does what the law intended,” says Jay

Johnston, who manages the state’s Violent Crime Information Center. “It’s helping

our police officers do a much better job of protecting the public. Now when they

stop someone, they can obtain information from VCIN to help them deal with that

individual more effectively.”

The power to protect

As the head of the
California Department
of Justice, Attorney
General Dan Lungren
(right) drove the
effort to create a
statewide information
network on violent
criminals. Says
Unisys public sector
specialist Tim Bauman
(left), “It’s exciting to
work on a project
that uses information
as a powerful weapon 
to protect the public
from violence and
prepare law officials
for potentially dang-
erous situations.”

For the second year in a row
Computerworld has ranked Unisys
as #2 in client satisfaction among the
world’s top systems integrators; that’s
good standing in a market with
double-digit growth.
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“Over the last five years, Unisys has grown into one of the world’s top
information services companies. We’re looking to become the leader in select,
high-growth markets—markets where we can leverage our people’s industry
and technology expertise and replicate our proven solutions. For these clients,
we provide information services and solutions that ensure the systems most
critical to their business deliver tangible performance improvements.”

Lawrence C. Russell
President, Unisys Information Services 

The market for information services continues to grow at a healthy pace. Both

public and private organizations know they must invest in technology to deliver

competitive products and services. However, they need help in determining which

technologies are best for their business and then in applying those technologies to

full advantage. To address such needs, Unisys Information Services has developed

a combination of resources that’s one of the strongest in the services industry.

in-depth market knowledge
To deliver services and solutions that have measurable impact for our clients,

we need to understand their business strategies and challenges. We possess

this domain expertise in the financial services, government, communications,

transportation, and commercial markets. That’s how we develop leading-edge

solutions like FBA Navigator, which helps retail banks automate branch operations

and maintain long-term customer relationships…or our NAP VoiceSource

messaging services, which give telephone service providers added competitive

advantage and increased revenues…or Unisys Virtual Integrator Suite, which

helps freight forwarders and airlines provide shippers with reliable service.

expertise across the board
We enrich our vertical market solutions with expertise in systems integration,

outsourcing, imaging, and year 2000 services. In 1997, as part of a major initiative

with Microsoft, we announced a comprehensive suite of services to assist

organizations deploy Microsoft Windows NT across the enterprise. According

to Microsoft Executive VP Steve Ballmer, “Unisys brings extensive and deep

experience in systems and services for business-critical computing, as well as

expertise in key enterprise markets such as government and financial services.”

a strong circle of alliances
In creating solutions for each of our core market sectors, we complement our own

resources with those of third party hardware, software, and service partners. By

building relationships with industry-leading providers, we can offer clients complete

information solutions made up of best-of-breed components—regardless of who

makes them. Our alliances include Compaq, Microsoft, Oracle, Hewlett-Packard, and

Sun Microsystems—as well as more than 100 partners for specific market sectors.
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Unisys Global Customer Services

Care and feeding     

Maimonides Medical
Center has grown by
focusing on its
patients’ needs and
preferences—such as
homelike birthing
centers with state-of-
the-art medical
support standing
ready if needed. “It’s
very gratifying,” says
Jim White, Unisys
network consultant
(left), “to see how our
expertise in designing,
building, and manag-
ing information net-
works plays a role in
helping Maimonides
expand their services
without losing sight
of their core mission.”

“Although NetWORKS is a
new entry within the remote
network management field,
Unisys has developed a
vision for delivering
Network Management
Services which answers key
customer requirements.”
G2 Research Inc.
July 1997
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Maimonides Medical Center in Brooklyn, New York, was the first hospital in the

nation to transplant a human heart. Today, the hospital carries its heritage of

leading-edge care into areas ranging from emergency services to child delivery.

Understandably, providing quality patient care is the number-one mission at

Maimonides as it continues to grow. Building and maintaining a computer

network is not.

However, like hospitals everywhere, Maimonides’ network of servers and 

PCs is playing an increasingly vital role in distributing critical information to

staff. “Our strategy has been to expand geographically,” says Ann Sullivan,

Maimonides chief information officer. “We’ve been opening six new ambulatory

centers a year. To provide the level of off-site support necessary, we needed an

enterprisewide network.”

So Maimonides turned to a Unisys team of network engineers for assistance.

“Unisys began the project with a thorough investigation of our needs and long-

term strategies. Then they helped us develop a network that satisfied our needs

for growth,” explains Sullivan

We also provide help-desk services for resolving computer problems

encountered by the hospital’s desktop users. “If we ran the help desk in-house, it

would cost us about a quarter of a million dollars a year,” says Sullivan. “Unisys has

shown that they can provide around-the-clock service very effectively for far less—

despite a 243% increase in call volume as we’ve added new sites and applications

to the network.”

The network’s rapid growth was also forcing Maimonides staff to spend

more and more time on maintenance and trouble-shooting. That left less time

for strategic network planning and development. Unisys has been able to off-load

much of that daily upkeep by remotely monitoring the network from one of our

NetWORKS services centers. Meanwhile, hospital staff stay informed by reviewing

reports of our analyses on a secure Web site.

of a growing network

The market for distributed computing support services
is projected to grow 14% annually to $56 billion through
the year 2000. Unisys is ready to deliver those network
solutions and be a global leader.



16

In the express shipping business, if you don’t stay on the leading edge of service

and efficiency, you lose. BAX Global (formerly Burlington Air Express) serves

corporate customers who demand highly coordinated pickups and deliveries

involving multiple sites. And they expect to know where their freight is at any

point along the way. That means BAX Global needs a sophisticated communications

network to link its more than 500 offices in 118 countries.

Life on the 

Unisys Global Customer Services

BAX Global wanted to deploy the latest innovations such as bar-code labeling

and package tracking on the World Wide Web. But as the shipper began to use

software that allowed real-time tracking and customer access to company data, it

discovered its existing network—which used satellites for communication—simply

wasn’t fast enough. So BAX Global turned to Unisys for help in designing a new

network strategy based on a high-speed, low-cost technology called frame relay.

“We tried the frame relay network at a single site and found that performance

in the transmission rate was up to four times faster than our existing network,” says

Manny Villalobos, BAX Global network planning manager. “Our staff are enjoying

200% improvements in the speed of their new software, and we’re realizing a 20%

cost savings in monthly charges over the old network.”

Because of the excellent results BAX Global achieved in its initial tests of frame

relay, the company decided to replace its entire satellite-based network. Unisys had

the worldwide presence and networking expertise to handle the complex project

in a timely fashion. We also brought preeminent networking partners to the project,

including MCI and Cisco Systems. Explains Villalobos, “We chose Unisys for its

ability to deliver a consistent and predictable level of quality service anywhere in 

the world.”

Unisys is one of the leading network integrators in the world.
We begin with a thorough investigation of our client’s
strategic goals. From there, we can design the network,
build it, manage it, maintain it.
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(competitive) edge
As a major express
shipper, BAX Global
must build its entire
business for speed.
“Our task,” explains
Dennis Vannote
(right), Unisys
network design
consultant, “was to
make BAX Global’s
communication
network work faster
so the company could
start providing inno-
vative Web-based
services to customers
—without missing a
beat in its ongoing
operations.”

Unisys ranked first
in LAN/Desktop Services

Geographical Coverage
in Account Management

#1in Field Maintenance Capability
CIO Magazine/META Group 
1997 survey of service providers
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In the banking industry, the teller is the hub of direct customer service. For

deposit, withdrawal, payment, or balance information, the customer counts on

the teller to be the single source of information. And that information must be

delivered quickly with no hassles. The Standard Bank of South Africa wanted the

same kind of service for its branch employees when they needed help using their

desktop computers.

The bank’s two previous internal help desks were overwhelmed by the more

than 30,000 computer-related calls they received per month from more than 500

branch locations. This time, Standard Bank chose the team of Unisys and Sykes

Enterprises, Inc.—a highly regarded specialist in help-desk services—to ensure

that employees would dial only one number to get help faster than ever before.

Unisys Global Customer Services

A single source for
desktop help

Help-desk services are only one component of Unisys comprehensive suite

of OneCALL desktop services. OneCALL provides a single point of contact for

integrating a wealth of technical expertise and multivendor products. The same

number that gets Unisys clients answers to help-desk questions also can connect

them with services to procure, configure, and install their PCs. It’s the number to

call for ongoing hardware maintenance and software support—as well as expertise

on managing desktop or laptop assets. In addition, clients have access to more than

13,000 different supplies and printers through Unisys DIRECT. And because we have

direct lines to our vendors’ inventories, we can deliver most items within 24 hours.

“The corporate customer
increasingly wants a single
point of contact and a single
supplier for as much of its
IT needs as possible.”
Chris Lewis
The Yankee Group
July 1997

At The Standard Bank
of South Africa,
employees at 500-
plus branch offices
typically generate
30,000 calls per
month for assist-
ance on their PCs.
According to Nikki
Pather, Unisys service
support agent (below),
“We're here to ensure
that the bank's
employees spend 
less time resolving
computer problems
and more time
concentrating
on customers.”
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Ever since the introduction of personal computers, more and more critical

applications have migrated out of the data center and onto the desktop. Although

this change improved productivity, it brought with it a host of support problems

most businesses never anticipated. For example, How can they safeguard data that’s

distributed across different types of servers, PCs, and laptops? Integrate all the

systems? Track these dispersed technology investments? Maximize the network’s

performance? Support end users at the desktop?

Unisys Global Customer Services brings customers a combination

of capabilities unique in the market for distributed computing support.

G. A. Gagliardi
President, Unisys Global Customer Services

“We’ve had enormous success serving our customers at the network and
desktop levels. To fuel further growth, we’re expanding our capabilities in
high-end services like network and desktop consulting to help clients build
systems that further their business goals. We’re also focused on migrating
local-area networks to emerging client-server environments and managing
the networks remotely. We’re well on our way to becoming the world’s
premier provider in the growing market for distributed computing
support services.”

any time, any where, any equipment
We’ve built an unmatched worldwide support infrastructure with more than 8,000

services personnel and some 6,000 stocking locations in more than 100 countries.

We can seamlessly dispatch people, parts, and technical information when and 

where our clients need them. Our personnel undergo rigorous training to maintain

virtually any equipment, including systems running Microsoft Windows NT. And

we’ve been awarded the industry’s first Global ISO 9001 certificate for our ability

to execute consistent processes on a worldwide basis.

all the best solutions
Unlike many of our competitors, we maintain a vendor-neutral, technology-

independent philosophy. We provide solutions from a portfolio of more than

10,000 desktop and networking products. Our partnerships include industry-

leading technology and services companies such as Cisco Systems, Bay Networks,

MCI Systemshouse, Microsoft, and Novell. These alliances let us ensure our clients

get the best value for their investments.

every phase of the life cycle
We have a network-centric view of each client’s business. We see how every phase

of a network’s life cycle—from planning through management—must support

the client’s business objectives. We have assembled one of the broadest service

portfolios in the industry to deliver on that vision. And we’ve tightly integrated

all our services for the most effective, cost-efficient delivery to our clients.
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Unisys Computer Systems

Securing the

From the time they’re
young, Costa Ricans
are taught to cherish
their right to vote. In
fact, they celebrate
their elections with
community events
where everyone 
gets involved. Says
Pablo Rojas, Unisys
information systems
manager (left), “It’s
very exciting to work
with Magistrate
President Lic. Rafael
Villegas Antillon
(right) and the entire
Electoral Tribunal in
making Costa Rica’s
electoral process as
accurate and
streamlined as
possible.”
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Costa Rica is the oldest democracy in Central America and committed to preserving

the integrity of its voting system. All citizens 18 years and older must register to vote.

And voter ID cards are used for almost everything—from cashing checks to getting

a driver’s license. Until recently, however, cards took as long as four weeks to process,

and they were susceptible to tampering.

“We have always had a good electoral system in Costa Rica,” explains Fernando

Viquez, planning director for the country’s powerful Electoral Tribunal. “But we have

to go further. We want to improve the checking of voter identity for our elections.

And it is important that we get identification cards to our citizens more quickly.”

business of democracy

“Biometrics is attracting interest in the public sector
in applications such as welfare and voter registration.
In parallel, price reductions, compact technology, and
growing user acceptance will make biometrics attractive
for corporate applications such as remote network access
and laptop security.”
Jackie Fenn
Gartner Group
January 1998

“The new system will make
it easier for our citizens to do
the things they need to do
every day—and, just as
importantly, to do the thing
they need to do only every
four years: vote.”

Fernando Viquez,
Planning Director 
Costa Rica Electoral Tribunal

Now, the Tribunal is working with Unisys to streamline its electoral process

and efficiently deliver tamper-proof ID cards. First, we implemented an electronic

imaging system to convert two million voter ID photos in two months into a

digitized format. The new system was designed so the photos and other data could

be smoothly integrated with the Tribunal’s existing database of citizen information.

Books containing citizen photos and records were then distributed to the country’s

429 electoral districts so officials could positively identify voters during the January

1998 elections.

In the second phase of the project, applicants for new cards will have images

of their face, two finger tips, and signature electronically captured using Unisys

“biometric” identification solutions. The system will compare the finger-tip images

against the entire database to ensure only one record exists for each citizen. Citizens

who apply for cards at the Tribunal’s central site will be able to obtain their card

while they wait. Cards ordered at regional offices will take a week or less to deliver.

Eventually, the electronic imaging system will help Costa Rica accelerate

service and reduce fraud not only in its electoral process but in other situations

where citizens use their ID cards.
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Unisys Computer Systems

As the largest regional telephone company in the United States, BellSouth

Telecommunications processes 12 million customer payments every month, or

400,000 to 500,000 envelopes daily. If these payments are not processed quickly,

cash isn’t being used to maximum business advantage. And if questions or disputes

regarding payments are not handled smoothly, customer service can suffer.

Therefore, BellSouth Telecommunications wanted a payment-processing system

that would increase productivity and reduce costs while helping service agents

respond faster to customer inquiries.

Solutions that fit

Unisys delivered a solution that fits the bill. We combined our PCs with our

Aquanta servers and document processors based on Microsoft’s Windows NT

operating system and Intel microprocessors. Windows NT costs less to implement

and maintain than many other systems and is very good at handling real-time tasks

like check processing. At the same time, the Unisys servers can be scaled to address

demanding enterprise computing requirements. And we incorporated our sophis-

ticated storage technology to ensure non-stop availability even if some systems fail.

Our solution also employed imaging technology to reduce the labor-intensive

process of entering payment coupon and check information into the system. Now,

paper payments are converted into electronic files, which can be processed and

managed with greater speed and accuracy at a lower cost. According to BellSouth

Telecommunications Assistant Treasurer Mike Tate, “The efficiencies we realized

from the system allowed us to consolidate from three processing centers to two.”

We integrated the new remittance solutions with BellSouth Telecommunication’s

existing billing and accounting systems running in an IBM environment. The

business payoff is that payments remitted to BellSouth Telecommunications are now

more effectively converted into cash for the company. Customer service benefited,

too. In the past, customers disputing payments had to mail BellSouth Telecom-

munications a copy of their canceled check. Now, an image of every check is in 

the database and can be reproduced as needed.

Says Tate, “I see our system as being more than a payment processor—as

offering opportunities in areas such as electronic banking and direct marketing.”

Unisys Aquanta enterprise servers set several new transaction processing
performance records for Microsoft’s Windows NT operating system during
1997 based on the “TPC-C benchmark,” which is accepted as the industry
standard for comparing computing price and performance.

The market for servers
running Windows NT is 
projected to grow at a 
compound annual growth
rate of 35% through the 
year 2000 to more than 
$15 billion.
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the bill

BellSouth is bringing
in new revenue
through innovative
programs like “Teen
Line Pack,” which is
sold in retail outlets
and includes an order
form for installing a
separate phone line
for chatty teenagers.
“My job,” explains
Cecil Reames (right),
in Unisys performance
lab, “is to ensure
Unisys servers meet
the highest levels of
performance so
clients like BellSouth
have the power to
process customer
payments quickly and
get the cash to their
bottom line.”
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In 1997, Danish Rail handled four million freight transactions throughout Denmark

and Europe, making it one of the largest transportation companies in the country.

Just one of those transactions can involve transporting a shipload of crates for a

major shipping company or a couple of tons of products for other customers. To stay

competitive, Danish Rail is expanding its services, adding greater speed, flexibility,

and efficiency to its operations. As the company grows, so also must the critical

information systems that support its business. So Danish Rail was one of our first

clients to order two Unisys ClearPath enterprise servers in 1996—then a third in

1997. ClearPath is allowing the transportation company to continue using its legacy

applications while adding, and integrating, newer applications based on standard,

open platforms.

Unisys Computer Systems

The right track

Thousands of organizations around the world have made huge

investments over the years in proprietary hardware and software

to drive their business-critical systems. At the same time, these

companies want to introduce powerful applications onto open

platforms for the cost savings and large library of standard software

they offer. ClearPath’s Heterogeneous MultiProcessor (HMP)

software can integrate these diverse environments within a single

distributed system.

At Danish Rail, for example, staff access vital transaction

information on shipments at their PCs—information that ClearPath

has combined from data kept in an open environment and other

records residing in a Unisys 2200 environment. Over time, more

and more of Danish Rail’s critical applications will run in open

environments. With ClearPath, the company can set its own pace

for change while securing its existing investments. That’s good news

for its front-line employees as well as its back-office accountants.

“The investments we see Unisys making lead
us to believe that [its] MCP and OS2200
technology will become more tightly inte-
grated with emerging standards, particularly
NT, and that investments in legacy software
are safe for the indefinite future.”
Richard Fichera
Giga Information Group, Inc.
September 1997 

Danish Rail is
branching out to
deliver freight in the
most efficient ways
to its customers. It's
also expanding its
information tech-
nology infrastructure
to support that
mission. According to
Rob Andrews, Unisys
operating systems
developer (left), “I’m
proud to have helped
develop the software
that protects our
clients’ investments
in legacy applications
while allowing them
to take advantage of
newer open
platforms.”
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“We plan to lead the industry in bringing enterprise-class computing attributes
to the Microsoft Windows NT operating environment. We can succeed in this
growing market by forming key partnerships that will help us leverage our
strengths in developing business-critical, large-scale systems. Our strategy is 
to integrate hardware and software components that enable Windows NT 
to anchor the most demanding, world-class systems earlier than the 
industry expects.”

George R. Gazerwitz
President, Unisys Computer Systems 

The market for servers running Microsoft Windows NT is growing at a

compound annual growth rate of 35%—more than three times that of UNIX.

Businesses are clearly seeking the advantages Windows NT offers: uniform

standards, price/performance, and the ability to tie seamlessly with their desktop

Windows applications. Still, many industry analysts argue that Windows NT will

not be ready to support enterprise-class applications until at least 2001. Unisys

Computer Systems has set forth an initiative that defies the naysayers.

systems with vision
We continue to invest heavily to improve the performance and openess of Unisys

ClearPath enterprise servers. ClearPath allows clients to continue using their

proprietary applications while gaining access to new applications running under

Windows NT. In addition, our Aquanta family provides a broad range of servers

based on Windows NT and Intel Pentium microprocessor technologies. Our “6-way”

and “10-way” Aquanta systems have received high marks from industry benchmarks

in price/performance and scalability. In 1998, we’ll introduce a Windows NT server

with 32 processors—taking the technology even closer to the level of traditional

mainframes.

software on a mission
We’re developing hardware-independent software solutions that are essential for

equipping Windows NT to meet the tough requirements of enterprise computing.

These offerings focus on increasing the performance of Windows NT systems while

also making them more scalable, reliable, interoperable, manageable, secure, and

ready for the Internet.

partners in a common goal
Unisys has formed alliances with a strong group of partners that will help us

accelerate enterprise-level capabilities for Windows NT. Among the select technology

partners are BEA Systems, Computer Associates, Intel, Microsoft, Oracle, and

Tandem (a Compaq company). We’re also focused on growing revenue generated

by solution partners who sell and distribute Unisys technology. We’ve signed

agreements with enterprise integrators such as Coopers & Lybrand, a leading

provider of systems consulting and services to clients worldwide, as well as

independent software vendors such as SAP, PeopleSoft, INSCI, and QAD.
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Unisys Federal Systems

Ready

Unisys is one of the top three
providers of commercial
information services and
technology to the U.S.
federal government

At the Space and
Naval Warfare
Systems Center,
Unisys helps develop,
install, and support
software applications
used by the U.S. Navy
and Marines. “It all
comes down to
operational readi-
ness,” says Wanda
Chambers, Unisys
senior programmer
analyst (right). 
“The applications 
we develop really do
help ensure that ships
are ready to sail and
officers are prepared
with the information
they need—when they
need it.” 
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to serve
What information systems are key to the U.S. Navy’s readiness to operate in any situation? Certainly tactical

systems that support weapons launches or intelligence gathering are critical. But so are “non-tactical”

software applications like those that manage the supplies and maintenance of the ships or the records

of personnel—sound, well-equipped ships and qualified sailors are equally important. Developing,

implementing, and supporting these non-tactical business applications is the charter of the Space and Naval

Warfare Systems Center in Chesapeake, Virginia. And working alongside the center’s personnel in these

operations are Unisys software engineers. Additionally, NASA and the U.S. Marine Corps are using the 

same software to manage maintenance on their aircraft.

Unisys also works with the U.S. Navy to integrate the non-tactical and tactical applications into a

common operating environment. Integrating these systems improves the Navy’s operational readiness by

enabling its personnel to access both types of applications faster and more easily. The standard platform

also offers economies of scale that help the Navy reduce the cost of maintaining many different systems.

With more than 200 contracts and a presence in most U.S. federal agencies,

Unisys is one of the top three providers of commercial information services

and technology to the U.S. federal government. Unisys Federal Systems brings

together services and technologies throughout Unisys—along with those of

other vendors—into integrated solutions for this unique market. At the U.S.

Social Security Adminstration, for example, we are implementing the single

largest Windows NT deployment in the federal government. The engagement

includes installing and networking up to 56,000 workstations.

Drawing on our successful history and leadership position in the federal

government, we are ready to capture new opportunities in this dynamic market.

In 1997, we introduced “Select IT,” an online, one-stop shopping forum for U.S.

government workers looking to buy technology equipment quickly. For the first

time, these customers have a central clearinghouse where they can comparison

shop and get fast delivery—just like in the commercial world.

“Unisys Online Shopping
Forum ‘Breaks the Mold’”
Washington Technology
June 12, 1997 
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Unisys Commitments

As a responsible corporate citizen, Unisys invests in the communities where we

operate and where our employees and their families live. We focus our contributions

of technology and services, dollars, and employee volunteers on programs involving

science, mathematics, and technology education—especially at the elementary level.

Sharing our knowledge

In 1997, we continued our strong support of the Science Learning Network—

a multiyear, $6.5 million project funded by Unisys and the National Science

Foundation in the United States. This effort explores how to best train and support

teachers who are beginning to use the Internet and the World Wide Web as part of

classroom instruction. The project, now in its third school year in the United States,

involves pilot elementary schools and six major science museums led by The

Franklin Institute in Philadelphia. The Science Learning Network also has begun an

important expansion to the global education community through new relationships

with leading science museums in Europe, Latin America, and the Pacific Rim. These

museums will be collaborating to build multilingual and multicultural resources for

the Science Learning Network, making it a truly global program.

Students and their
teacher at the
Levering School in
Philadelphia explore
science education
resources on the
Science Learning
Network website
(www.sln.org).
Students in the
project are using the
Web to collaborate
with students in 
other schools, publish
classroom projects,
and research and
explore a world of
information.

“After 20 years of doing
basically the same thing,
SLN has made teaching
more enjoyable for me and
even more exciting for my
students. I am very happy
and proud to be a part of
the ‘Network.’”
Lana Perry
Levering School, Philadelphia
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Our ability to serve customers is increasingly dependent on two factors. First is the

knowledge and experience of our employees, which we continually enhance through

training, education, and other developmental activities. The second factor is the

ability of our talented employees to tap the collective knowledge assets of the

organization as a whole, which we support through a global infrastructure of

information technology. We now link almost all of our 32,000 employees from their

desktops, their laptops, their telephones, and other technology such as our global

satellite television network. To ensure we have world-class credentials in both critical

areas, we are actively pursing a range of initiatives to manage our “knowledge capital.”

and our know-how

In 1997, we launched a Web-based career-management system that allows

employees to pursue the training and development opportunities they need to

manage a successful career at Unisys and to remain competitive in the marketplace.

For example, this system brings more than 600 computer-enabled learning

programs to the employees’ desktops—when and where they need them.

Our knowledge capital also is enhanced by the free flow of ideas, questions,

and even challenges concerning how to best serve our customers. In 1997, we

established an employee forum on our Intranet—Ask Larry Weinbach—

encouraging employees to communicate directly with our chairman. Answers and

comment are regularly published for employees worldwide. We also launched

Exec!, a World Wide Web journal for senior managers. This electronic publication

(www.unisys.com/execmag) presents thought-provoking articles about information

technology and business solutions, as well as a guide to the very best material on

the Web of interest to senior decision makers—both inside and outside Unisys.

We will be enhancing and formalizing these and other knowledge

management initiatives during 1998, including establishing benchmarks to better

assess our progress in managing these critical assets.

Recent hires (from
left) Serra Usman,
Mike Slish, Terry
Schrepfer, Wendy
Beech, Nancy Bonner,
and Rick Doyle are
sources of fresh
energy and new ideas
to help Unisys grow.
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Unisys Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview
For 1997, the company reported net income before one-time charges of $199.0 million,
compared to net income of $61.8 million before one-time charges for 1996. Before one-time
items in both years, in 1997 the company earned $.46 per common share on a diluted basis
after preferred dividends, compared to a loss of $.34 on a diluted basis after preferred
dividends in 1996.

In the fourth quarter of 1997, the company recorded a one-time charge of $1.1 billion
against net income. Including this charge, the company had a 1997 net loss of $853.6
million, or $5.30 per share, compared to 1996 net income of $49.7 million, or a loss of
$.41 per share after preferred dividends. Net income in 1996 includes a charge for an
extraordinary item of $12.1 million, or $.07 per share, for the early retirement of debt. The
1997 loss of $5.30 per share is computed based on the weighted average common shares
outstanding. Earnings per share for 1997 before one-time charges ($.46) are computed 
on a diluted basis, which also includes additional shares from the assumed conversion 
of outstanding stock options and convertible debt.

The $1.1 billion charge in the fourth quarter of 1997 reflects a number of actions 
taken to focus the company’s resources on enterprise-class servers and its services business,
accelerate profitable revenue growth, and reduce debt. The charge included $127.0 million,
or $.70 per share, principally related to the company’s decision to discontinue the manufac-
turing and assembly of personal computers and low-end servers and to dispose of a small,
non-strategic technology product. The company plans to meet customer needs for low-end
systems through partnering arrangements.

Also included in the charge is the non-cash writeoff of $883.6 million, or $4.85 per
share, of goodwill principally related to the 1986 merger of Burroughs Corporation and
Sperry Corporation. The writeoff reflects the rapid changes that continue to occur in the
marketplace away from the proprietary technology and maintenance businesses and the
continuing declines in revenue and margins in these businesses, as well as the company’s
decision to change the method used for measuring the remaining value of goodwill.
Yearly amortization of this goodwill was approximately $36 million.

The final component of the fourth-quarter charge was $42.0 million, or $.23 per share,
related to the conversion of convertible debt. During the fourth quarter of 1997, the com-
pany reduced its long-term debt by $616 million through the conversion of convertible
notes into 73.2 million shares of common stock. Approximately $271 million of the debt 
was converted in response to a special offer by the company to pay a cash premium for 
each note converted. The $42.0 million charge represents the cost of the special offer.
For further information on the 1997 fourth quarter charges, see Note 3 of the Notes to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31 (Millions, except per share data) 1997 1996 1995

Revenue $6,636.0 $6,370.5 $6,342.3

Costs and expenses

Cost of revenue 4,402.4 4,252.1 4,650.1

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,427.2 1,448.1 1,849.8

Research and development expenses 302.3 342.9 404.5

Goodwill impairment 883.6

7,015.5 6,043.1 6,904.4

Operating income (loss) (379.5) 327.4 (562.1)

Interest expense 233.2 249.7 202.1

Other income (expense), net (146.1) 16.0 (16.9)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes (758.8) 93.7 (781.1)

Estimated income taxes (benefit) 94.8 31.9 (153.8)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before 
extraordinary item (853.6) 61.8 (627.3)

Income from discontinued operations 2.7

Extraordinary item (12.1)

Net income (loss) (853.6) 49.7 (624.6)

Dividends on preferred shares 111.1 120.8 120.3

Earnings (loss) on common shares $ (964.7) $ (71.1) $ (744.9)

Earnings (loss) per common share – basic

Continuing operations $ (5.30) $ (.34) $ (4.37)

Discontinued operations .02

Extraordinary item (.07)

Total $ (5.30) $ (.41) $ (4.35)

Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted

Continuing operations $ (5.30) $ (.34) $ (4.37)

Discontinued operations .02

Extraordinary item (.07)

Total $ (5.30) $ (.41) $ (4.35)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Results of operations
The following comparisons of income statement categories exclude all of the 1997 and 
1996 one-time charges discussed above, as well as 1995 after-tax charges of $581.9 million
for restructuring and $88.6 million for contract losses. See Note 3 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue for 1997 was $6.6 billion compared to $6.4 billion in 1996 and $6.3 billion
in 1995. Revenue from international operations in 1997, 1996, and 1995 was $3.9 billion,
$4.0 billion, and $3.9 billion, respectively. Revenue from U.S. operations was $2.7 billion
in 1997 and $2.4 billion in both 1996 and 1995.

Revenue for 1997 rose 4% to $6.6 billion from $6.4 billion in 1996. Excluding the
negative impact of foreign currency fluctuations, primarily in Europe, revenue in 1997 
rose 7%. Currency and related financial issues in the Asian markets did not have a 
material impact on the company’s operations in 1997.

Total gross profit percent was 35.1% in 1997, 33.3% in 1996, and 34.5% in 1995.
The increase in 1997 over 1996 was due to higher gross profit percentages in both
Information Services and Computer Systems.

Selling, general and administrative expenses in 1997 were $1.4 billion compared
to $1.4 billion in 1996 and $1.5 billion in 1995.

Research and development expenses in 1997 were $297.4 million compared to
$342.9 million in 1996 and $361.8 million in 1995. These declines were largely due to
the company’s cost reduction actions.

In 1997, the company reported operating income of $613.8 million (9.2% of revenue)
compared to $327.4 million (5.1% of revenue) in 1996 and $284.5 million (4.5% of revenue)
in 1995.

Information by business unit for 1997, 1996, and 1995 is presented below:

Global
Elimi- Information Customer Computer

(Millions of dollars) Total nations Services Services Systems

1997

Customer revenue $ 6,636.0 $2,056.0 $2,148.1 $ 2,431.9
Intercompany $ (497.9) 19.4 64.7 413.8

Total revenue $ 6,636.0 $ (497.9) $2,075.4 $2,212.8 $ 2,845.7

Gross profit percent* 35.1% 20.8% 27.3% 45.5%

Operating income percent* 9.2% (2.9)% 9.6% 16.1%

1996

Customer revenue $ 6,370.5 $1,951.4 $1,991.9 $ 2,427.2
Intercompany $ (557.0) 9.9 100.0 447.1

Total revenue $ 6,370.5 $ (557.0) $1,961.3 $2,091.9 $ 2,874.3

Gross profit percent* 33.3% 17.8% 29.7% 41.0%

1995

Customer revenue $ 6,342.3 $1,836.8 $1,884.1 $ 2,621.4
Intercompany $ (629.0) 119.7 509.3

Total revenue $ 6,342.3 $ (629.0) $1,836.8 $2,003.8 $ 3,130.7

Gross profit percent* 34.5% 15.1% 30.3% 41.9%

*as a percent of total revenue

Note: Certain business unit amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
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Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 803.0 $1,029.2

Accounts and notes receivable, net 967.3 959.0

Inventories 560.8 642.3

Deferred income taxes 461.4 365.8

Other current assets 94.0 136.8

Total 2,886.5 3,133.1

Long-term receivables, net 47.4 59.3

Properties 1,774.1 1,950.3

Less – Accumulated depreciation 1,192.9 1,328.5

Properties, net 581.2 621.8

Goodwill 34.2 981.3

Investments at equity 215.7 244.4

Deferred income taxes 665.7 678.7

Other assets 1,160.6 1,248.5

Total $ 5,591.3 $6,967.1

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Notes payable $ 40.6 $ 13.9

Current maturities of long-term debt 213.1 5.8

Accounts payable 817.1 871.1

Other accrued liabilities 1,307.2 1,453.4

Dividends payable 26.6 26.6

Estimated income taxes 172.8 94.3

Total 2,577.4 2,465.1

Long-term debt 1,438.3 2,271.4

Other liabilities 369.7 474.6

Redeemable preferred stock 150.0

Stockholders’ equity

Preferred stock 1,420.1 1,420.2

Common stock, shares issued: 1997 – 250.2; 1996 – 175.7 2.5 1.8

Accumulated deficit (1,736.8) (770.1)

Other capital 1,520.1 954.1

Stockholders’ equity 1,205.9 1,606.0

Total $ 5,591.3 $6,967.1

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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In Information Services, customer revenue for 1997 was $2.1 billion, up 5% from
$2.0 billion in 1996. Customer revenue in 1996 increased 6% from $1.8 billion in 1995.
The increases in both years were the result of growth in both systems integration and
outsourcing. The gross profit percent was 20.8% in 1997, 17.8% in 1996, and 15.1% in 1995.
The increase in 1997 compared to 1996 reflects the benefits of an improved bid quality and
control process, as well as continued benefits from completing certain problem contracts.
The increase in 1996 compared to 1995 was a result of management’s efforts to constrain
growth in certain markets to improve profitability.

In Global Customer Services, customer revenue for 1997 was $2.1 billion, up 8% 
from $2.0 billion in 1996. Customer revenue in 1996 increased 6% from $1.9 billion in 1995.
The increase in revenue in both years was due to growth in distributed computing support
services (“DCSS”) revenue. A large part of these increases were due to the continued rollout
of a large, low-margin federal government networking project. Growth in DCSS revenue in
both years more than offset a continuing decline in core maintenance revenue. The gross
profit percent for Global Customer Services was 27.3% in 1997, 29.7% in 1996, and 30.3% 
in 1995. The declines in gross profit margins continue to reflect heavy competition in 
the network integration market and commoditization of low-end, third-party hardware
components that are typically part of a network integration project. Margins also reflect
the continued rollout of the federal government networking project and the continued shift
in the mix from proprietary maintenance toward DCSS. The company expects to continue
to see pressure in Global Customer Services’ gross margins going forward.

Computer Systems’ customer revenue for 1997 was $2.4 billion compared to
$2.4 billion in 1996 and $2.6 billion in 1995. Customer revenue for 1997 was only up 
slightly from 1996 due to a high volume of revenue in late 1996 of high-end models of the
ClearPath enterprise servers. Customer revenue in 1996 decreased 7% from 1995 principally
due to declines in large-scale enterprise servers caused by delays in availability for certain
ClearPath models. The gross profit percent was 45.5% in 1997, 41.0% in 1996, and 41.9% 
in 1995. The increase in 1997 compared to 1996 was due in large part to a richer mix of
enterprise servers and enterprise server software sales.

Interest expense was $233.2 million in 1997, $249.7 million in 1996, and $202.1 million
in 1995. The decline in 1997 was due to lower average debt levels; the increase in 1996 was
due to higher average debt levels.

Other income (expense), net, which can vary from year to year, was an expense of
$64.8 million in 1997, income of $16.0 million in 1996, and an expense of $16.9 million
in 1995. The difference in 1997 compared to 1996 was principally due to lower interest and
equity income in 1997 and a gain on the sale of an equity investment in 1996. The change
in 1996 compared to 1995 was due principally to foreign exchange gains in 1996 compared
to losses in 1995, a gain on the sale of an equity investment in 1996, and higher equity
income.

Income from continuing operations before income taxes in 1997 was $315.8 million
compared to $93.7 million in 1996 and $65.5 million in 1995.

Estimated income taxes in 1997 were $116.8 million compared to $31.9 million in 
1996 and $22.3 million in 1995. The 1996 tax provision included a benefit of $24.8 million
related to reversals of deferred tax valuation allowances due to additional tax planning
strategies available to the company. The effective income tax rate for 1998 is expected to
be approximately one percentage point lower than in 1997 due to the reduction in the 
amount charged to income for goodwill, which was not deductible for tax purposes.
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Unisys Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996 1995

Cash flows from operating activities

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (853.6) $ 61.8 $ (627.3)

Add (deduct) items to reconcile income (loss) from continuing 
operations to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Effect of extraordinary item (12.1)

Depreciation 156.0 182.0 203.0

Amortization:

Marketable software 97.0 101.6 151.7

Goodwill 963.9 46.1 40.9

(Increase) in deferred income taxes, net (25.3) (51.0) (223.1)

Decrease (increase) in receivables, net 24.0 11.0 (66.9)

Decrease (increase) in inventories 81.5 32.1 (15.4)

(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (220.6) (258.4) 565.6

Increase (decrease) in estimated income taxes 23.0 (34.7) (63.9)

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities (71.1) (85.9) 215.5

Decrease (increase) in other assets 106.5 (70.3) (132.7)

Other 102.2 (11.9) 50.3

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 383.5 (89.7) 97.7

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from investments 1,662.5 1,846.1 3,311.9

Purchases of investments (1,629.0) (1,845.9) (3,329.6)

Proceeds from marketable securities 4.8 14.4

Proceeds from sales of properties 5.1 77.4 30.3

Investment in marketable software (132.9) (116.2) (123.0)

Capital additions of properties (179.9) (162.3) (195.0)

Purchases of businesses (22.2) (17.9) (42.3)

Net cash used for investing activities (291.6) (218.8) (333.3)

Cash flows from financing activities

Redemption of redeemable preferred stock (150.0)

Proceeds from issuance of debt 1,139.7

Principal payments of debt (766.4) (68.2)

Costs of debt conversions (46.1)

Net proceeds from (reduction in) short-term borrowings 26.7 (1.9) 3.1

Dividends paid on preferred shares (113.1) (120.8) (120.2)

Other 8.4 .6 2.8

Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities (274.1) 251.2 (182.5)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (24.9) (7.3) 5.7

Net cash used for continuing operations (207.1) (64.6) (412.4)

Discontinued operations

Proceeds from sale 862.0

Other (19.1) (20.5) (203.7)

Net cash (used for) provided by discontinued operations (19.1) (20.5) 658.3

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (226.2) (85.1) 245.9

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,029.2 1,114.3 868.4

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 803.0 $1,029.2 $1,114.3

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



36

In 1995, the company sold its defense business for cash of $862 million. The net results
of the defense operations for 1995 are reported separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Income as “income from discontinued operations.” See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Effective January 1, 1998, the company changed the functional currency of its
Brazilian operations from the U.S. dollar to the Brazilian local currency because the
Brazilian economy is no longer considered highly inflationary. This change is not expected
to have a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial position, consolidated
results of operations, or liquidity.

During 1997, the company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) Nos. 125 and 128, and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 96-1. In 1998, the company will adopt SFAS No. 131 as 
well as SOP 97-2. For further information on these items, see Notes 2 and 5 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financial condition
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 1997 were $803.0 million compared to
$1.0 billion at December 31, 1996.

During 1997, cash provided by operations was $383.5 million compared to 1996 cash
usage of $89.7 million. The increase in cash provided of $473.2 million was due in large part
to improved working capital management, including improvements in inventory turns and
accounts receivable days outstanding. Cash expenditures related to restructuring actions
(which are included in operating activities) in 1997, 1996, and 1995 were $178.7 million,
$220.8 million, and $133.0 million, respectively. Cash expenditures for restructuring actions,
principally for work force reductions and facility costs, are expected to be approximately
$180 million in 1998 and $58 million in 1999 and beyond. Personnel reductions in 1997
related to restructuring actions were approximately 2,600 and are expected to be
approximately 1,400 thereafter, principally in 1998.

Cash used for investing activities during 1997 was $291.6 million compared to $218.8
million for 1996. The increased cash usage in 1997 was principally due to increased capital
expenditures as a number of large-scale ClearPath enterprise servers were added to the
company’s rental machines base, and to an increase in investment for marketable software,
principally for a new level of ClearPath software.

Cash used for financing activities during 1997 was $274.1 million compared to cash
provided of $251.2 million in 1996. In 1997, the company redeemed all $150.0 million of its
Series B and C Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and spent $46.1 million in connec-
tion with the conversions of debt into common stock described below. The year-ago period
included proceeds of $1.1 billion from issuances of debt and $766.4 million of principal
payments of debt. Dividends paid on preferred stock were $113.1 million in 1997 compared
to $120.8 million in 1996.
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At December 31, 1997, total debt was $1.7 billion, a decline of $599.1 million from
December 31, 1996. In the fourth quarter of 1997, $616.2 million of the company’s
convertible subordinated notes were converted into 73.2 million shares of common stock.
These conversions included all $345.0 million of the company’s 8 1/4% convertible subordi-
nated notes due 2000 and $271.2 million of its 8 1/4% convertible subordinated notes due
2006. On February 5, 1998, the company redeemed all $197.5 million of its 9 1/2% senior
notes due on July 15, 1998. This redemption, combined with the two conversions, is
expected to save the company more than $58 million in cash and interest expense in 1998.

On January 30, 1998, the company issued $200 million of 7 7/8% senior notes due 2008.
The net proceeds from the sale of the notes were used to call $200 million principal amount
of 10 5/8% senior notes due 1999 at 101.77%.

The company may, from time to time, redeem, tender for, or repurchase its securities in
the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending upon availability, market
conditions, and other factors.

In December 1997, Duff & Phelps Credit Rating Co. raised its credit ratings on the
company’s senior long-term debt and subordinated debt to BB from B+ and to BB- 
from B-, respectively. The credit ratings on the company’s senior long-term debt and
subordinated debt by Standard and Poor’s Corporation are B+ and B-, respectively;
Moodys’ Investor Service ratings are B1 and B3, respectively.

The company has a $200 million revolving credit facility that expires in June 1999.
The facility includes certain financial tests that must be met as conditions to a borrowing
and provides that no amounts may be outstanding under the facility for a minimum of
20 consecutive days in each quarter. The facility may not be used to refinance other debt.
The amount the company may borrow at any given time is dependent upon the amount 
of certain of its accounts receivable and inventory. As of December 31, 1997, there were no
borrowings outstanding under the facility and the entire $200 million was available for
borrowings.

At December 31, 1997, the company had deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax
liabilities of $1,435 million. For the reasons cited below, management determined that it is
more likely than not that $1,035 million of such assets will be realized, therefore resulting
in a valuation allowance of $400 million.

The company evaluates quarterly the realizability of its net deferred tax assets by
assessing its valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such allowance, if
necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization are the company’s forecast
of future taxable income, which is adjusted by applying probability factors and available tax
planning strategies that could be implemented to realize deferred tax assets. The combina-
tion of these factors is expected to be sufficient to realize the $1,035 million of net deferred
tax assets. Approximately $3.0 billion of future taxable income (predominantly U.S.) is
needed to realize all of the net deferred tax assets.

The company’s net deferred tax assets include substantial amounts of net operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income might affect
the ultimate realization of the net deferred tax assets. See “Factors That May Affect Future
Results” below.

Stockholders’ equity decreased $400.1 million during 1997, principally reflecting the net
loss of $853.6 million, preferred stock dividends declared of $113.1 million, and translation
adjustments of $58.0 million, offset in part by $606.7 million related to conversions of
convertible debt.
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Factors that may affect future results
From time to time, the company provides information containing “forward-looking”
statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All forward-
looking statements rely on assumptions and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and other
factors that could cause the company’s actual results to differ materially from expectations.
In addition to changes in general economic and business conditions and natural disasters,
these include, but are not limited to, the factors discussed below.

The company operates in an industry characterized by aggressive competition, rapid
technological change, evolving technology standards, and short product life cycles. Future
operating results will depend on the company’s ability to design, develop, introduce, deliver,
or obtain new products and services on a timely and cost-effective basis; on its ability to
mitigate the effects of competitive pressures and volatility in the information technology
and services industry on revenues, pricing, and margins; on its ability to effectively manage
the shift of its business mix away from traditional high-margin product and services
offerings; and on its ability to successfully attract and retain highly skilled people.

Certain of the company’s systems integration contracts are fixed-price contracts
under which the company assumes the risk for the delivery of the contracted services at 
an agreed-upon price. Future results will depend on the company’s ability to profitably
perform these services contracts and bid and obtain new contracts.

Approximately 60% of the company’s total revenue derives from international
operations. The risks of doing business internationally include foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations, changes in political or economic conditions, trade protection measures,
and import or export licensing requirements.

Many computer systems will experience problems handling dates beyond the year 1999
and therefore need to be modified prior to the year 2000 in order to remain functional.
The company has been taking actions to ensure both the internal readiness of its computer
systems and the compliance of computer products and software sold by it to customers for
handling dates beginning in the year 2000. The company does not believe that the cost of
these actions will have a material adverse effect on the company’s results of operations or
financial condition. However, future results may be adversely affected by a delay in, or
increased costs associated with, the implementation of these actions, or by the company’s
inability to implement them.

In the course of providing complex, integrated solutions to customers, the company
frequently forms alliances with third parties that have complementary products, services,
or skills. However, future results will depend in part on the performance and capabilities of
these third parties, including their ability to deal effectively with the year 2000 issue. Future
results will also depend upon the ability of external suppliers to deliver components at
reasonable prices and in a timely manner and on the financial condition of and the
company’s relationship with distributors and other indirect channel partners.
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Unisys Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant
accounting policies
Principles of consolidation The
consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of all majority-owned subsidiaries
including Unisys Receivables, Inc. (“URI”) to
which the company sells accounts receivable
which URI then sells to a master trust. Invest-
ments in companies representing ownership
interests of 20% to 50% are accounted for 
by the equity method.
Use of estimates The preparation 
of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash equivalents All short-term 
investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less are classified as cash
equivalents.

Inventories Inventories are valued at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
principally on the first-in, first-out method.

Properties and depreciation
Properties are carried at cost and are
depreciated over the estimated lives of such
assets using the straight-line method. Lease-
hold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of the asset lives or the terms of the
respective leases. The principal rates used are
summarized below by classification of properties:

Revenue recognition Sales revenue 
is recorded upon shipment of product in the
case of sales contracts, upon shipment of the
program in the case of software, and upon
installation in the case of sales-type leases.
Revenue from services and equipment
maintenance is recorded as earned over 
the lives of the respective contracts.

Revenue under systems integration 
and services contracts is recognized when
services have been performed and accepted
or milestones have been met. Cost of
revenue under such contracts is charged
based on current estimated total costs. 

Accounting for large multi-year, fixed-price
systems integration contracts involves
considerable use of estimates in determining 
revenue, costs, and profits. When estimates
indicate a loss under a contract, cost of
revenue is charged with a provision for 
such loss. Revisions in profit estimates are
reflected in the period in which the facts that
give rise to the revision become known.

Income taxes Income taxes are 
provided on taxable income at the statutory
rates applicable to such income. Deferred
taxes have not been provided on the
cumulative undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries since such amounts are expected
to be reinvested indefinitely.

Software capitalization The cost of
development of computer software to be sold
or leased is capitalized and amortized to cost
of sales over the estimated revenue-producing
lives of the products, but not in excess of
three years following product release.
Unamortized marketable software costs
(which are included in other assets) at
December 31, 1997 and 1996 were $259.0
and $223.1 million, respectively.

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess 
of cost over fair value of net assets acquired,
which is being amortized on the straight-line
method. Accumulated amortization at
December 31, 1997 and 1996 was $5.7 and
$617.1 million, respectively.

Rate per Year (%)

Buildings 2-5

Machinery and equipment 5-25

Tools and test equipment 10-331/3

Rental equipment 25

1
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The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it may not be
recoverable. If such an event occurred, the
company would prepare projections of future
cash flows for the applicable business. If such
projections indicated that goodwill would not
be recoverable, the company’s carrying value
of such asset would be reduced by the esti-
mated excess of such value over projected
discounted cash flow.

Translation of foreign currency
The local currency is the functional currency
for most of the company’s international
subsidiaries and, as such, assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates. Income and expense items
are translated at average exchange rates
during the year. Translation adjustments
resulting from changes in exchange rates 
are reported in a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Exchange gains and
losses on intercompany balances of a long-
term investment nature are reported in the
separate component of stockholders’ equity.

For those international subsidiaries
operating in hyper-inflationary economies, 
the U.S. dollar is the functional currency and,
as such, non-monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at historical exchange rates and
monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at current exchange rates. Exchange gains
and losses arising from translation are
included in other income.

Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instruments used by
the company are foreign exchange forward
contracts and options. The company does 
not hold or issue derivatives for speculative
trading purposes. These instruments have
been designated as hedges of certain
forecasted transactional exposures.

For these financial instruments, no impact
on financial position or results of operations
would result from a change in the level of the
underlying rate, price, or index. All of the
company’s foreign currency contracts and
options have been designated as and are
effective as hedges against specific expo-
sures and have been accounted for as such. 

Therefore, a change in the derivative’s value
would be offset by an opposite change in the
hedged item.

The company monitors and controls its
risks in the derivative transactions referred 
to above by periodically assessing the cost 
of replacing, at market rates, those contracts
in the event of default by the counterparty.
The company believes such risk to be remote.
In addition, before entering into derivative
contracts, and periodically during the life 
of the contract, the company reviews the
counterparties’ financial condition.

Gains or losses on foreign exchange
forward contracts and the cost of foreign
currency options are deferred in current liabili-
ties and prepaid expenses, respectively, and
are recognized in income (either in revenue or
cost of revenue) when the transactions being
hedged are recorded. Cash flows on such
instruments are reported in investing activities
as proceeds or purchases of investments.

If the criteria for hedge accounting
discussed above were not met, gains or
losses on these instruments would be
included in income currently and would not 
be deferred. If a derivative financial instrument
is terminated before the transaction date of
the hedged transaction, any deferred gain or
loss would continue to be deferred until the
transaction date. If a forecasted transaction 
is no longer likely to occur, any deferred gains
or losses on financial instruments that hedge 
such a transaction would be reported in
income immediately.

Reclassifications Certain prior-year
amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the 1997 presentation.
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Year ended December 31 
(Millions, except per share data) 1997 1996 1995

Earnings per share computation – basic

Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item $ (853.6) $ 61.8 $ (627.3)

Less dividends on preferred shares (111.1) (120.8) (120.3)

Income (loss) available to common stockholders (964.7) (59.0) (747.6)

Discontinued operations 2.7

Extraordinary item (12.1)

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (964.7) $ (71.1) $ (744.9)

Weighted average shares (thousands) 182,016 172,507 171,238

Earnings per share – basic

Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item $ (5.30) $ (.34) $ (4.37)

Discontinued operations .02

Extraordinary item (.07)

Net income (loss) $ (5.30) $ (.41) $ (4.35)

Earnings per share computation – diluted

Income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (964.7) $ (59.0) $ (747.6)

Discontinued operations 2.7

Extraordinary item (12.1)

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (964.7) $ (71.1) $ (744.9)

Weighted average shares (thousands) 182,016 172,507 171,238

Earnings per share – diluted

Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item $ (5.30) $ (.34) $ (4.37)

Discontinued operations .02

Extraordinary item (.07)

Net income (loss) $ (5.30) $ (.41) $ (4.35)

The average shares listed below were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would 
have been antidilutive for the periods presented.

Year ended December 31 (thousands) 1997 1996 1995

Employee stock plans 4,154 723 719

8 1/4% convertible notes due 2006 40,946 35,486

8 1/4% convertible notes due 2000 27,016 33,697 33,697

Series A preferred stock 47,454 47,454 47,454

2Earnings per share
As of December 31, 1997, the company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128, “Earnings per
Share.” This statement establishes new
standards for computing and presenting
earnings per share. Adoption of SFAS No. 128

and restatement of prior periods’ earnings 
per share were required in the fourth quarter 
of 1997. For the company, earnings per share
under SFAS No. 128 for 1997 was the same
as if it were computed in accordance with the
prior rule.The effect of restatement on prior
periods was immaterial.
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During 1996, the company experienced
lower-than-anticipated costs for work-force
reductions. Revisions of estimates for these
costs were offset by additional provisions 
for product and program discontinuances 
and facility consolidations, $84 million of
which were recorded in the fourth quarter.

Other charges In the fourth quarter 
of 1997, the company recorded a charge of
$883.6 million, or $4.85 per diluted common
share, for the writeoff of goodwill principally
related to the 1986 merger of Burroughs
Corporation and Sperry Corporation. Yearly
amortization of such goodwill was approxi-
mately $36 million. Effective December 31,
1997, the company elected to change its
method of measuring goodwill impairment.
Prior to the change, when impairment
indicators existed, goodwill was evaluated 
for impairment and any impairment would 
have been measured based on comparing 
the unamortized goodwill to projected
undiscounted operating results. Under the
company’s new accounting method, any
impairment of goodwill indicated by such
comparison would be measured by discounting
projected cash flows using a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved. When 
a goodwill impairment must be recognized, the
company believes the discounted cash flow
method is a better measurement of the 

Work-Force
(Millions) Total Reductions(1) Facilities(2) Products(3)

Balance at
Dec. 31, 1995 $734.3 $ 473.3 $249.6 $ 11.4

Utilized (300.4) (155.6) (62.9) (81.9)

Provided 84.0 13.0 71.0

Other(4) (84.0) (110.2) (7.4) 33.6

Balance at 
Dec. 31, 1996 433.9 207.5 192.3 34.1

Provided 149.0 64.9 2.5 81.6

Utilized (284.2) (140.9) (76.5) (66.8)

Other(4) (9.7) (1.0) (15.1) 6.4

Balance at
Dec. 31, 1997 $289.0 $ 130.5 $103.2 $ 55.3

(1) Includes severance, notice pay, medical, and other benefits.
(2) Includes consolidation of office facilities and manufacturing capacity.
(3) Includes product and program discontinuances, and goodwill.
(4) Includes changes in estimates, reversals of excess reserves, 

and translation adjustments.

Significant fourth- 
quarter events
Restructuring charges In the fourth
quarter of 1997, the company recorded a
pretax charge of $149.0 million, $127.0 million
after tax, or $.70 per diluted common share.
The charge was related to plans to discon-
tinue the manufacturing and assembly of
personal computers and low-end servers, and
to dispose of a small, non-strategic technology
product. The charge included (a) $64.9 million
for work-force reductions (principally in
Europe) of approximately 1,000 people,
including severance, notice pay, medical, and
other benefits, (b) $81.6 million for product 
and program discontinuances, and goodwill
associated with these businesses, and 
(c) $2.5 million associated with facilities.

In the fourth quarter of 1995, the company
recorded a pretax charge of $717.6 million,
$581.9 million after tax, or $3.39 per diluted
common share. The charge included (a)
$436.6 million for work-force reductions of
approximately 7,900 people, including sever-
ance, notice pay, medical, and other benefits,
(b) $218.6 million for consolidation of office
facilities and manufacturing capacity, and 
(c) $62.4 million associated with product 
and program discontinuances.

Cash expenditures related to restructuring
in 1997, 1996, and 1995 were $178.7 million,
$220.8 million, and $133.0 million, respec-
tively. Cash expenditures are expected to be
$180 million in 1998 and $58 million in 1999
and beyond, principally for work-force reduc-
tions and facility costs. Personnel reductions
in 1997 related to restructuring actions were
approximately 2,600 and are expected to 
be approximately 1,400 thereafter, principally
in 1998. Actual costs incurred are charged 
to the accrued liability when the actions 
are taken.

Activity related to the restructuring reserve
during the years ended December 31, 1997
and 1996 was as follows:

3
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Year ended December 31 (Millions) 1995

Revenue $ 258.1*

Income from operations, net of
taxes of $6.5 $ 12.5*

Loss on sale, net of taxes of $98.2 (9.8)

Income from discontinued 
operations $ 2.7

*Reflects results for the period January 1 through 
March 31, 1995.

remaining value of goodwill, considering 
the company’s circumstances, particularly 
the rapid changes that continue to occur in 
the marketplace away from the proprietary
technology and maintenance businesses, 
and the continuing declines in revenue and
margins in these businesses.

In addition, in the fourth quarter of 1997,
the company completed the conversion of
$271.2 million of its 8¼ % convertible subordi-
nated notes due 2006. The conversion was 
in response to a special offer to pay holders 
of these notes a cash premium for each note
converted. The company recorded a one-time
charge of $42.0 million, or $.23 per diluted
common share, to cover the cost of this
special offer.

In the fourth quarter of 1995, the company
recorded a charge (in cost of revenue) for
contract losses of $129.0 million, $88.6 million
after tax, or $.51 per diluted share, related to
certain services contracts, primarily a few large
multi-year, fixed-price systems integration con-
tracts. Included in the charge was $65.5 million
related to fourth-quarter developments with
respect to contract terminations and $63.5
million related to contract performance issues
including schedule slippages, late deliveries,
and cost overruns that arose in that quarter.

Summary The 1997 and 1995 charges 
for restructurings and other charges were
recorded in the following statement of 
income classifications:

Discontinued operations
During the year ended December 31, 1995,
the company sold its defense business for
cash of $862 million. The net results of the
defense operations for 1995 are reported
separately in the Consolidated Statement 
of Income as “income from discontinued 
operations.”

The following is a summary of the 
results of operations of the company’s
defense business:

4

5 Accounting changes 
and extraordinary item
As discussed in Note 3, effective December
31, 1997, the company elected to change its
method of measuring goodwill impairment.

Effective January 1, 1997, the company
adopted SFAS No. 125, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities.” This statement
requires that if a transfer of financial assets
does not meet certain criteria for recording 
the transaction as a sale, the transfer must 
be accounted for as a secured borrowing. 
The adoption of SFAS No. 125 did not have a
material effect on the company’s consolidated
financial position, consolidated results of
operations, or liquidity.

Effective January 1, 1997, the company
adopted the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“AICPA”) Statement 
of Position (“SOP”) 96-1, “Environmental
Remediation Liabilities.” The SOP provides
authoritative guidance on the recognition,
measurement, display, and disclosure of
environmental remediation liabilities. Adoption
of SOP 96-1 did not have a material effect on
the company’s consolidated financial position,
consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 1997 1995

Cost of revenue $ 92.5 $ 498.7
Selling, general and administrative

expenses 12.3 305.2
Research and development 

expenses 4.9 42.7
Goodwill impairment 883.6
Other income (expense), net 81.3

Total $1,074.6 $ 846.6
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7

6Effective January 1, 1996, the company
adopted SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,” and
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” SFAS No. 123 requires the
recognition or disclosure of compensation
expense for grants of stock options or other
equity instruments issued to employees
based upon their fair value. As permitted 
by SFAS No. 123, the company adopted 
the disclosure-only option and therefore will
continue to apply APB Opinion 25 for its stock
plans. Accordingly, no compensation expense
has been recognized for its stock option plans.
The adoption of these statements had no
effect on the company’s consolidated financial
position, consolidated results of operations, 
or liquidity.

In October of 1997, the AICPA issued SOP
97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition.” This
SOP provides guidance on applying generally
accepted accounting principles in recognizing
revenue on software transactions. The SOP 
is effective for transactions entered into after
December 31, 1997. The company will adopt
this SOP effective January 1, 1998 and such
adoption is not expected to have a material
effect on the company’s consolidated financial
position, consolidated results of operations, 
or liquidity.

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued SFAS No. 131, 
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information.” This statement
establishes standards for the way that
companies report information about operating
segments and is effective for financial state-
ments for periods beginning after December
15, 1997. The company expects to adopt
SFAS No. 131 for the year ended December
31, 1998, in its 1998 annual report. The
company has not yet made a determination 
of its operating segments. Adoption of SFAS
No. 131 will have no effect on the company’s
consolidated financial position, consolidated
results of operations, or liquidity.

In 1996, the company recorded an 
extraordinary charge for extinguishment 
of debt of $12.1 million, net of $6.5 million 
of income tax benefits, or $.07 per diluted
common share.

Estimated income taxes

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996 1995

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations before income taxes

United States $ (954.1) $(91.1) $(482.7)

Foreign 195.3 184.8 (298.4)

Total income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes $ (758.8) $ 93.7 $(781.1)

Estimated income taxes (benefit)

Current

United States $ 28.0 $(15.0) $ (83.6)

Foreign 69.0 87.0 60.5

State and local 23.1 10.9 (5.7)

Total 120.1 82.9 (28.8)

Deferred

United States (26.0) (70.9) (140.4)

Foreign 1.0 12.4 15.4

State and local (.3) 7.5

Total (25.3) (51.0) (125.0)

Total estimated income 
taxes (benefit) $ 94.8 $ 31.9 $(153.8)

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Finished equipment and supplies $289.7 $ 325.5

Work in process and raw materials 271.1 316.8

Total inventories $560.8 $ 642.3

At December 31, 1997 and 1996, work 
in process inventories included $140.7 and
$154.7 million, respectively, of costs related 
to long-term contracts.

Inventories
Inventories comprise the following:
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Year ended December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996 1995

United States statutory income
tax (benefit) $ (265.6) $ 32.8 $(273.4)

Difference in estimated income
taxes on foreign earnings, losses,
and remittances (35.4) 7.9 192.8

State taxes 14.8 11.8 (3.6)

Tax refund claims, audit issues, 
and other matters 42.7 (12.9) (85.4)

Amortization of goodwill 335.1 12.6 12.6

Reversal of valuation allowances (24.8)

Other 3.2 4.5 3.2

Estimated income taxes (benefit) $ 94.8 $ 31.9 $(153.8)

SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax
assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if 
it is more likely than not that some portion or 
all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
During 1997, the net decrease in the valuation
allowance was $34.2 million.

Cumulative undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries, for which no U.S. 
income or foreign withholding taxes have 
been recorded, approximated $615 million 
at December 31, 1997. Such earnings are
expected to be reinvested indefinitely.
Determination of the amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability with respect to such
earnings is not practicable. The additional
taxes payable on the earnings of foreign sub-
sidiaries, if remitted, would be substantially
offset by U.S. tax credits for foreign taxes
already paid. While there are no specific 
plans to distribute the undistributed earnings
in the immediate future, where economically
appropriate to do so, such earnings may be
remitted.

Cash paid during 1997, 1996, and 1995 for
income taxes was $80.0, $112.7, and $132.2
million, respectively.

At December 31, 1997, the company 
has U.S. federal and state and local tax loss 
carryforwards and foreign tax loss carryfor-
wards for certain foreign subsidiaries, the 
tax effect of which is approximately $433.3
million. These carryforwards will expire as
follows (in millions): 1998, $2.0; 1999, $6.5;
2000, $7.6; 2001, $10.9; 2002, $6.9; and
$399.4 thereafter. The company also has avail-
able tax credit carryforwards of approximately
$562.0 million, which will expire as follows 
(in millions): 1998, $106.9; 1999, $118.3;
2000, $96.3; 2001, $100.3; 2002, $83.0; 
and $57.2 thereafter.

The company’s net deferred tax assets
include substantial amounts of net operating
loss and tax credit carryforwards. Failure 
to achieve forecasted taxable income might
affect the ultimate realization of the net
deferred tax assets. In recent years, the
information services and systems industry 
has undergone dramatic changes and there
can be no assurance that in the future there
would not be increased competition or other
factors that may result in a decline in sales 
or margins, loss of market share, delays 
in product availability, or technological
obsolescence.

The tax effects of temporary differences
and carryforwards that give rise to significant
portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at December 31, 1997 and 1996, were as 
follows:

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Deferred tax assets

Tax loss carryforwards $ 433.3 $ 469.4

Foreign tax credit carryforwards 479.8 407.8

Other tax credit carryforwards 82.2 77.5

Capitalized research and 
development 327.4 242.4

Depreciation 55.7 61.3

Postretirement benefits 88.0 85.0

Employee benefits 65.4 73.0

Restructuring 115.9 196.4

Other 253.1 250.4

1,900.8 1,863.2

Valuation allowance (400.7) (434.9)

Total deferred tax assets $1,500.1 $1,428.3

Deferred tax liabilities

Pensions $ 319.5 $ 315.1

Other 146.0 103.9

Total deferred tax liabilities $ 465.5 $ 419.0

Net deferred tax asset $1,034.6 $1,009.3

Following is a reconciliation of estimated 
income taxes at the United States statutory
tax rate to estimated income taxes as reported:
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Long-term debt
Long-term debt comprises the following:

Total long-term debt maturities in 1998,
1999, 2000, 2001, and 2002 are $213.1,
$344.7, $15.6, $11.8, and $11.6 million,
respectively.

Cash paid during 1997, 1996, and 1995 
for interest was $253.1, $255.1, and $201.3
million, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of 1997, $616.2
million of the company’s convertible subordi-
nated notes were converted into 73.2 million
shares of common stock. These conversions
included all $345.0 million of its 8¼ % con-
vertible subordinated notes due 2000 and
$271.2 million of its 8¼ % convertible subordi-
nated notes due 2006. The conversion of the
notes due 2006 was in response to a special
offer to pay holders of these notes a cash pre-
mium for each note converted. As discussed
in Note 3, the company recorded a one-time
charge of $42.0 million to cover the cost of
this special offer.

On January 30, 1998, the company issued
$200 million of 77/8% senior notes due 2008.
The net proceeds from the sale of the notes
were used to call $200 million principal
amount of the 105/8% senior notes due 
1999 at 101.77%. On February 5, 1998, the
company redeemed all $197.5 million of the
9 ½ % senior notes due on July 15, 1998.

The company has a $200 million revolving
credit facility that expires in June 1999. The
facility includes certain financial tests that
must be met as conditions to a borrowing and
provides that no amounts may be outstanding
under the facility for a minimum of 20 consec-
utive days in each quarter. The facility may not
be used to refinance other debt. The amount
the company may borrow at any given time is
dependent upon the amount of certain of its
accounts receivable and inventory. As of
December 31, 1997, there were no borrow-
ings outstanding under the facility and the
entire $200 million was available for borrow-
ings. The company pays commitment fees on
the unused amount of the facility. In addition,
international subsidiaries maintain short-term
credit arrangements with banks in accordance 
with local customary practice.

9

8

The company is currently contesting 
issues before the Internal Revenue Service 
in connection with Sperry Corporation for 
the years ended March 31, 1978, through
September 16, 1986. For Convergent, Inc.,
the company is awaiting a report from the
Internal Revenue Service confirming the
treatment of settled issues for the years
1985-1988. In management’s opinion,
adequate provisions for income taxes 
have been made for all years.

Properties
Properties comprise the following:

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Land $ 24.5 $ 24.6

Buildings 208.7 218.5

Machinery and equipment 1,180.6 1,269.0

Tools and test equipment 103.5 138.3

Unamortized leasehold 
improvements 35.3 42.5

Construction in progress 18.6 19.6

Rental equipment 202.9 237.8

Total properties $1,774.1 $1,950.3

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

91/2% notes due 1998 $ 197.5 $ 197.5
105/8% senior notes due 1999 330.1 330.1
12% senior notes due 2003 425.0 425.0
113/4% senior notes due 2004 450.0 450.0
93/4% senior sinking fund

debentures due 2016 190.0 190.0
81/4% convertible subordinated

notes due 2006 27.8 299.0
81/4% convertible subordinated

notes due 2000 –1. 345.0
Other 31.0 40.6

Total 1,651.4 2,277.2
Less – Current maturities 213.1 5.8

Total long-term debt $1,438.3 $2,271.4



47

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Payrolls and commissions $ 288.7 $ 305.6

Customers’ deposits and 
prepayments 540.2 551.9

Taxes other than income taxes 130.5 164.6

Restructuring* 224.0 294.7

Other 123.8 136.6

Total other accrued liabilities $1,307.2 $1,453.4

*At December 31, 1997 and 1996, an additional $65.0 million 
and $139.2 million, respectively, was reported in other liabilities
(long term) on the consolidated balance sheet.

13

12 Leases
Rental expense, less income from subleases,
for 1997, 1996, and 1995 was $165.3, $177.7,
and $195.8 million, respectively.

Minimum net rental commitments under
noncancelable operating leases outstanding at
December 31, 1997, substantially all of which
relate to real properties, were as follows:
1998, $142.9 million; 1999, $117.8 million;
2000, $90.3 million; 2001, $71.2 million; 
2002, $54.4 million; and thereafter, $336.0
million. Such rental commitments have 
been reduced by minimum sublease rentals 
of $113.9 million due in the future under 
non-cancelable subleases.

Financial instruments
The company uses derivative financial
instruments to reduce its exposure to market
risks from changes in foreign exchange rates.
The derivative instruments used are foreign
exchange forward contracts and options.
These derivatives, which are over-the-counter
instruments, are non-leveraged and involve
little complexity.

Due to its foreign operations, the company 
is exposed to the effects of foreign exchange
rate fluctuations on the U.S. dollar. Foreign
exchange forward contracts and options
generally having maturities of less than nine
months are entered into for the sole purpose
of hedging certain transactional exposures. 

The cost of foreign currency options is
recorded in prepaid expenses in the consoli-
dated balance sheet. At December 31, 1997,
such prepaid expense was $5.5 million. When
the U.S. dollar strengthens against foreign
currencies, the decline in value of the under-
lying exposures is partially offset by gains 
in the value of purchased currency options
designated as hedges. When the U.S. dollar
weakens, the increase in the value of the
underlying exposures is reduced only by 
the premium paid to purchase the options.
The cost of options and any gains thereon 
are reported in income when the related
transactions being hedged (generally 
within 12 months) are recognized.

10
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Other accrued liabilities
Other accrued liabilities (current) comprise 
the following:

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income for the three years
ended December 31, 1997, includes the
following components:

Year ended 

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996 1995

Net income (loss) $(853.6) $ 49.7 $(624.6)

Other comprehensive 
income (loss) 

Foreign currency translation
adjustments* (40.4) (35.8) (22.7)

Related tax expense (benefit) 17.6 15.1 (24.3)

Total other comprehensive 
income (loss) (58.0) (50.9) 1.6

Comprehensive (loss) $(911.6) $ (1.2) $(623.0)

*Net of income on translation adjustments reclassified to income upon 
sale or writeoff of ownership interest in foreign investments as follows: 

1997, $2.8 million; 1996, $1.5 million; and 1995, $.9 million.
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Financial instruments also include
temporary cash investments and customer
accounts receivable. Temporary investments
are placed with creditworthy financial institu-
tions, primarily in over-securitized treasury
repurchase agreements, Euro-time deposits, 
or commercial paper of major corporations. 
At December 31, 1997, the company’s cash
equivalents principally have maturities of 
less than one month. Due to the short
maturities of these instruments, they are
carried on the balance sheet at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates market
value. Realized gains or losses during 1997
and 1996, as well as unrealized gains or
losses at December 31, 1997, were immate-
rial. Receivables are due from a large number
of customers that are dispersed worldwide
across many industries. At December 31,
1997 and 1996, the company had no
significant concentrations of credit risk.

The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because
of the short maturity of these instruments.
The fair value of the company’s long-term
debt is based on the quoted market prices 
for publicly traded issues. For debt that is 
not publicly traded, the fair value is estimated
based on current yields to maturity for the
company’s publicly traded debt with similar
maturities. In estimating the fair value of its
derivative positions, the company utilizes
quoted market prices, if available, or quotes
obtained from outside sources.

Litigation
There are various lawsuits, claims, and
proceedings that have been brought or
asserted against the company. Although the
ultimate results of these lawsuits, claims, and
proceedings are not currently determinable,
management does not expect that these
matters will have a material adverse effect on
the company’s consolidated financial position,
consolidated results of operations, or liquidity.

The company also enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts. Gains and losses
on such contracts, which hedge transactional
exposures, are deferred and included in
current liabilities until the corresponding trans-
action is recognized. At December 31, 1997,
the company had a total of $205.4 million 
(of notional value) of foreign exchange 
forward contracts, $159.1 million to sell
foreign currencies, and $46.3 million to buy
foreign currencies. At December 31, 1996, 
the company had a total of $200.0 million of 
such contracts, $144.7 million to sell foreign
currencies, and $55.3 million to buy foreign
currencies. At December 31, 1997, a realized
net gain on such contracts of approximately
$1.7 million was deferred and included in
current liabilities. Gains or losses on foreign
exchange forward contracts that hedge
foreign currency transactions are reported in
income when the related transactions being
hedged (generally within 12 months) are
recognized.

Financial instruments comprise the 
following:

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Outstanding

Long-term debt $1,651.4 $2,277.2

Foreign exchange forward contracts* 205.4 200.0

Foreign exchange options* 284.4 282.3

Estimated fair value

Long-term debt $1,823.4 $2,374.3

Foreign exchange forward contracts (6.1) (2.2)

Foreign exchange options 5.9 5.9

*notional value 14
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15 Business segment 
information
The company operates primarily in one
business segment – information services 
and systems. This segment represents more
than 90% of consolidated revenue, operating
profit, and identifiable assets. The company’s
products and services include enterprise-
class and network servers, desktop/mobile
systems, software, systems integration,
consulting and outsourcing services,
distributed computing support services, 
and hardware/software maintenance. These
products and services are marketed through-
out the world to commercial businesses 
and governments. While the company’s
worldwide operations are structured to
achieve consolidated objectives, the majority
of manufacturing costs and research and
development is incurred in the United States.
As a result, significant interdependencies and
overlaps exist among the company’s operating
units. Accordingly, the revenue, operating
profit, and identifiable assets shown for each
geographic area may not be indicative of the
amounts that would have been reported if 
the operating units were independent of 
one another.

Sales and transfers between geographic
areas are generally priced to recover certain
cost plus an appropriate mark-up for profit.
Operating profit is revenue less related costs
and direct and allocated operating expenses,
excluding interest and the unallocated portion
of corporate expenses. Corporate assets are
those assets maintained for general purposes,
principally cash and cash equivalents, good-
will, prepaid pension assets, deferred taxes,
investments at equity, and corporate facilities.
No single customer accounts for more than
10% of revenue. Revenue from various agen-
cies of the U.S. Government approximated
$791, $542, and $530 million in 1997, 1996,
and 1995, respectively.

A summary of the company’s operations 
by geographic area follows:

(Millions) 1997 1996 1995

United States
Customer revenue $ 2,705.5 $2,350.0 $ 2,405.5

Affiliate revenue 914.7 720.2 721.6

Total $ 3,620.2 $3,070.2 $ 3,127.1

Operating profit (loss) $ 155.0 $ (23.7) $ (306.9)

Identifiable assets 1,193.3 1,314.9 1,368.5

Europe and Africa
Customer revenue $ 2,005.9 $2,063.5 $ 2,090.3

Affiliate revenue 27.0 28.2 28.8

Total $ 2,032.9 $2,091.7 $ 2,119.1

Operating profit (loss) $ 90.0 $ 76.0 $ (505.0)

Identifiable assets 751.3 777.5 827.8

Americas/Pacific

Customer revenue $ 1,924.6 $1,957.0 $ 1,846.5

Affiliate revenue 83.0 122.3 138.7

Total $ 2,007.6 $2,079.3 $ 1,985.2

Operating profit $ 437.5 $ 420.9 $ 408.0

Identifiable assets 520.5 492.6 496.1

Adjustments and eliminations

Affiliate revenue $ (1,024.7) $ (870.7) $ (889.1)

Operating profit (29.0) (4.8) 21.5

Identifiable assets (54.2) (28.7) (23.9)

Consolidated

Revenue $ 6,636.0 $6,370.5 $ 6,342.3

Operating profit (loss) $ 653.5 $ 468.4 $ (382.4)

General corporate expenses* (1,179.1) (125.0) (196.6)

Interest expense (233.2) (249.7) (202.1)

Income (loss) from
continuing operations
before income taxes $ (758.8) $ 93.7 $ (781.1)

Identifiable assets $ 2,410.9 $2,556.3 $ 2,668.5

Corporate assets 3,180.4 4,410.8 4,444.7

Total assets $ 5,591.3 $6,967.1 $ 7,113.2

*Includes $883.6 million in 1997 related to goodwill impairment.
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Employee plans
Retirement benefits Defined benefit
retirement income plans cover the majority of
domestic employees and certain employees 
in countries outside the United States. In the
United States, the company has a retirement
plan under which funds are deposited with a
trustee. Major subsidiaries outside the United
States provide for employee pensions in
accordance with local requirements and
customary practices, and several maintain
funded defined benefit plans.

For the U.S. plan, which is covered by the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(“ERISA”), the company’s funding policy is 
to fund in accordance with ERISA funding
standards. The various benefit formulas and
the funding methods used in the international
plans are in accordance with local require-
ments. Plan assets generally are invested 
in common stocks, fixed-income securities,
insurance contracts, and real estate. 

Net curtailment gains of $3.2, $10.5, 
and $14.9 million have been recognized 
in 1997, 1996, and 1995, respectively.

Stock plans Under plans approved 
by the stockholders, stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, and
restricted stock units may be granted to
officers and other key employees.

Options have been granted to purchase 
the company’s common stock at 100% of the
fair market value at the date of grant. Options
have a maximum duration of ten years and
become exercisable in annual installments
over a two-, three-, or four-year period
following date of grant.

Restricted stock and restricted stock 
units have been granted and are subject to
forfeiture until the expiration of a specified
period of service commencing on the date of
grant. Compensation expense resulting from
the awards is charged to income ratably from
the date of grant until the date the restrictions
lapse and is based on fair market value at the

date of grant. During the year ended
December 31, 1997 and 1996, .7 and 
2.9 million shares of restricted stock and
restricted stock units were granted at a
weighted average grant date price of $8.79
and $7.06 per share, .3 and .5 million shares
and units were forfeited, and $6.4 and $4.6
million was charged to income, respectively.

Effective January 1, 1996, the company
adopted the disclosure-only option under
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” The company continues to
apply APB Opinion 25 for its stock plans.
Accordingly, no compensation expense has
been recognized for its stock option plans.

Pro forma information regarding net
income and earnings per share is required 
by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined
as if the company had accounted for its stock
plans under the fair value method of SFAS
No. 123. The fair value of stock options 
was estimated at the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions 
for 1997, 1996, and 1995, respectively: 
risk-free interest rates of 6.59%, 6.34%, 
and 6.70%, volatility factors of the expected
market price of the company’s common stock
of 55%, a weighted average expected life of
the options of 5 years, and no dividends.

For purposes of the pro forma 
disclosures, the estimated fair value of the
options is amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting period. The company’s pro
forma net income (loss) for the years ended
December 31, 1997, 1996, and 1995, respec-
tively, follows: 1997, $(858.3) million, or a 
loss of $5.33 per share; 1996, $46.0 million,
or a loss of $.43 per share; and 1995, 
$(626.9) million, or a loss of $4.36 per share.
Since the fair value of options is recognized
over the vesting period, the initial impact on
pro forma net income may not be representa-
tive of pro forma results in future years, when
the effect of multiple awards would be
reflected in the pro forma results.

16
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A summary of the status of stock option activity follows:

Year ended December 31 
(Shares in thousands) 1997 1996 1995

Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg. Weighted Avg.
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at 
beginning of year 18,224 $10.16 17,429 $11.48 17,474 $11.81

Granted 5,259 7.49 4,493 6.23 4,332 9.99
Exercised (944) 8.45 (119) 4.20 (471) 5.98
Forfeited and expired (2,258) 9.36 (3,579) 11.87 (3,906) 11.99

Outstanding at end of year 20,281 9.67 18,224 10.16 17,429 11.48

Exercisable at end of year 11,237 11.26 10,499 11.57 9,997 12.14

Shares available for granting
options at end of year 4,058 4,351 4,480

Weighted average fair value 
of options granted during 
the year $3.99 $3.40 $5.58

At December 31, 1997
(Shares in thousands) Outstanding Exercisable

Exercise Average Average Average
Price Range Shares Life * Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$4–7 7,928 8.34 $ 6.06 1,593 $ 5.25
$7–11 3,909 6.10 9.96 2,760 9.91
$11–13 4,750 6.68 11.59 3,278 11.60
$13–40 3,694 2.37 14.62 3,606 14.64

Total 20,281 6.43 9.67 11,237 11.26

* Average contractual remaining life in years.
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The status of the plan and amounts
recognized in the company’s consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 1997 and
1996, were as follows:

December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996

Actuarial present value of 
accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation $227.4 $221.6

Less plan assets at fair value (15.4) (24.8)

Accrued postretirement benefit 
liability in excess of plan assets 212.0 196.8

Unrecognized net loss (19.3) (10.7)

Unrecognized prior service benefit 25.5 28.3

Accrued postretirement benefit 
obligation recognized in the 
consolidated balance sheet $218.2 $214.4

As of December 31, 1997 and 1996, the
entire liability was classified as long term.

The assumed rate of return on plan 
assets, which are principally invested in fixed-
income securities, was 8% in 1997 and 1996,
and the weighted average discount rate used 
to measure the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation was 7.3% at December 31,
1997, and 7.5% at December 31, 1996. The
assumed health care cost trend rate used in
measuring the expected cost of benefits
covered by the plan was 9.2% for 1998,
gradually declining to 5.5% in 2006 and
thereafter. A one-percentage point increase 
in the assumed health care cost trend rate
would increase the accumulated postretire-
ment benefit obligation at December 31,
1997, by $10.8 million and increase the 
aggregate of the service and interest cost
components of net periodic postretirement
health care benefit cost by $.8 million.

Other postretirement benefits The
company provides certain health care benefits 
for U.S. employees who retired or terminated 
after qualifying for such benefits. Most 
international employees are covered by 
government-sponsored programs and the cost 
to the company (which is expensed principally 
on a pay-as-you-go-basis) is not significant. 

In 1992, the company announced changes 
to its postretirement benefit plans to phase 
out the company’s subsidy by January 1,
1996. Several lawsuits have been brought by
plan participants challenging the announced
changes to the plans, and the company is
defending them vigorously.

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for
1997, 1996, and 1995 includes the following
components:

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996 1995

Interest cost on accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation $16.3 $16.0 $17.6

Amortization of prior service 
benefit (2.7) (2.7) (8.5)

Net amortization and deferral 1.2 (1.5) 3.6

Return on plan assets (1.8) (1.0) (4.2)

Service cost – benefits earned 
during the period .1

Net periodic postretirement 
benefit cost $13.0 $10.8 $ 8.6
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Assets Exceed Accumulated Benefits Accumulated Benefits Exceed Assets

U.S. Plan Int’l Plans U.S. Plan Int’l Plans

(Millions) 1997 1996 1997 1996 1997 1996 1997 1996

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations
Vested benefit obligation $3,356.1 $3,142.3 $617.1 $ 669.4 $ 54.1 $ 52.0 $ 20.0 $ 30.2

Accumulated benefit obligation $3,435.1 $3,193.4 $627.5 $ 683.3 $ 55.8 $ 53.5 $ 20.3 $ 32.9

Projected benefit obligation $3,484.4 $3,246.2 $662.8 $ 710.6 $ 59.3 $ 53.5 $ 22.6 $ 37.2

Plan assets at fair value 4,107.1 3,662.8 775.6 871.7 13.7 20.2

Projected benefit obligation   
less than (in excess of) plan assets 622.7 416.6 112.8 161.1 (59.3) (53.5) (8.9) (17.0)

Unrecognized net loss (gain) 158.1 330.5 (59.2) (42.0) 13.8 11.2 (4.7) (9.7)

Unrecognized prior service (benefit) cost (40.4) (50.4) 6.8 7.0 4.7 2.2 .2 1.1

Unrecognized net (asset) obligation
at date of adoption (.2) (.3) (.8) (2.1) 2.4 3.2 1.8 3.3

Prepaid pension cost (pension liability)
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet $ 740.2 $ 696.4 $ 59.6 $ 124.0 $ (38.4) $ (36.9) $ (11.6) $ (22.3)

Net periodic pension cost for 1997, 1996, and 1995 includes the following components:

U.S. Plans International Plans

(Millions) 1997 1996 1995 1997 1996 1995

Service cost – benefits earned during the period $ 33.4 $ 34.6 $ 33.8 $ 14.2 $ 20.9 $ 22.9

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 247.3 242.5 245.2 42.8 45.8 49.5

Return on assets (680.4) (507.8) (684.1) (105.6) (101.5) (85.6)

Net amortization and deferral 364.8 197.8 355.2 50.9 38.2 25.3

Net periodic pension (income) cost $ (34.9) $ (32.9) $ (49.9) $ 2.3 $ 3.4 $ 12.1

The assumptions used to determine the above data were as follows:

Discount rate 7.25% 7.75% 7.50% 6.77% 7.11% 7.23%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.40% 5.40% 5.40% 3.74% 3.88% 4.08%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 8.25% 8.33% 8.37%

Retirement benefits
The plans’ funded status and amounts 
recognized in the company’s consolidated 
balance sheet at December 31, 1997 and
1996, were as follows:
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Each share of Series A Preferred Stock 
(i) accrues quarterly cumulative dividends 
of $3.75 per share per annum, (ii) has a
liquidation preference of $50.00 plus accrued
and unpaid dividends, (iii) is convertible into
1.67 shares of the company’s common stock,
subject to customary anti-dilution adjust-
ments, and (iv) is redeemable at the option of
the company under certain circumstances at

The company has 360.0 million authorized 
shares of common stock, par value $.01 per
share and 40.0 million shares of authorized
preferred stock, par value $1 per share,
issuable in series. The company has author-
ization to issue up to 30.0 million shares of
Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock (“Series A Preferred Stock”).

Stockholders’ equity
Changes in stockholders’ equity during 
the three years ended December 31, 1997, 
were as follows:

Other Capital
Accumulated Other,

Retained Other Princi-
Earnings Comprehensive pally

Preferred Stock Common (Accumulated Treasury Income Paid-in
(Millions) Series A Series B Series C Stock Deficit) Stock (Loss)* Capital

Balance at December 31, 1994 $1,420.3 $ 50.0 $100.0 $ 1.7 $ 45.7 $(16.0) $(340.8) $1,343.6

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans (.3) 2.7

Net income (loss) (624.6)

Dividends (123.7)

Translation adjustments 1.6

Balance at December 31, 1995 1,420.3 50.0 100.0 1.7 (702.6) (16.3) (339.2) 1,346.3

Transfer to “redeemable
preferred stock” (50.0) (100.0)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans .1 23.6

Net income 49.7

Dividends (117.2)

Unearned compensation (9.4)

Translation adjustments (50.9)

Other (.1)

Balance at December 31, 1996 1,420.2 – – 1.8 (770.1) (16.3) (390.1) 1,360.5

Conversions to common stock (.1) .7 606.0

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 4.0 8.4

Net income (loss) (853.6)

Dividends (113.1)

Unearned compensation 3.0

Translation adjustments (58.0)

Other .1 2.5

Balance at December 31, 1997 $1,420.1 $ – $ – $ 2.5 $(1,736.8) $(12.2) $(448.1) $1,980.4

*Entire amount relates to foreign currency translation adjustments.

17
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20% or more of the company’s common
stock, or announces a tender or exchange
offer for 30% or more of the common stock.
If the company is acquired (or survives in a
reverse merger transaction) or 50% or more
of its consolidated assets or earnings power
are sold, each right will entitle its holder 
to purchase a number of the acquiring
company’s common shares (or the company’s
common shares) having a market value of
$150. The company will be entitled to redeem
the rights at one and two-thirds cents per
right prior to the earlier of the expiration of 
the rights, or the time that a 20% position 
has been acquired. Until the rights become
exercisable, they have no dilutive effect on
net income per common share.

At December 31, 1997, 77.1 million shares
of unissued common stock of the company
were reserved for the following: 47.5 million
for convertible preferred stock, 4.0 million for
the 8¼ % convertible subordinated notes due
2006, and 25.6 million for stock options and
stock purchase plans.

Changes in issued shares during the three
years ended December 31, 1997, were as
follows:

$50.00 per share. In addition, shares of Series
A Preferred Stock have priority as to dividends
over holders of the company’s common stock
that rank junior with regard to dividends. If, on
the date used to determine stockholders of
record for a meeting of stockholders at which
directors are to be elected, preferred stock
dividends are in arrears in an amount equal 
to at least six quarterly dividends, the number
of members of the Board of Directors will be
increased by two as of the date of such stock-
holders’ meeting and the holders of shares 
of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled 
to vote for and elect such two additional
directors.

In 1997, the company redeemed at stated 
value all $150.0 million of its Series B and C
Preferred Stock.

Each outstanding share of common 
stock has attached to it one preferred 
share purchase right. Each right entitles the
registered holder to purchase for $75, under
certain circumstances, one three-hundredth of
a share of Junior Participating Preferred Stock,
par value $1 per share. The rights become
exercisable only if a person or group acquires 

Series A
Preferred Common Treasury

(Thousands) Stock Stock Stock

Balance at December 31, 1994 28,405 171,827 (865)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 489 (28)

Balance at December 31, 1995 28,405 172,316 (893)

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 3,426 (6)

Other 1

Balance at December 31, 1996 28,405 175,743 (899)

Conversions to common stock (2) 73,150

Issuance of stock under stock
option and other plans 1,245 160

Other 84

Balance at December 31, 1997 28,403 250,222 (739)
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Report of Management
The management of the company is responsible for the integrity of its financial statements. These statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and include amounts based on the best estimates
and judgments of management. Financial information included elsewhere in this report is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

The company maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance at a
reasonable cost that assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use, and that transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorization and recorded and summarized properly. This system is augmented by
written policies and procedures, an internal audit program, and the selection and training of qualified personnel.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, have audited the company’s financial statements. Their accompanying
report is based on audits conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, which require a review
of the system of internal accounting controls and tests of accounting procedures and records to the extent necessary
for the purpose of their audits.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of outside directors, oversees
management’s responsibilities in the preparation of the financial statements and selects the independent auditors, subject
to stockholder ratification. The Audit Committee meets regularly with the independent auditors, representatives of
management, and the internal auditors to review the activities of each and to assure that each is properly discharging its
responsibilities. To ensure complete independence, the internal auditors and representatives of Ernst & Young LLP have
full access to meet with the Audit Committee, with or without management representatives present, to discuss the results
of their examinations and their opinions on the adequacy of internal controls and the quality of financial reporting.

Lawrence A. Weinbach Robert H. Brust
Chairman, President, Senior Vice President
and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors of Unisys Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unisys Corporation at December 31, 1997
and 1996, and the related consolidated statements of income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1997. These financial statements are the responsibility of Unisys Corporation’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Unisys Corporation at December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the consolidated results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1997, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, effective December 31, 1997, Unisys Corporation
changed its method of accounting for the measurement of goodwill impairment.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
January 15, 1998, except for the fourth paragraph of Note 9,

as to which the date is February 5, 1998
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Unisys Corporation

Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarterly financial information

First Second Third Fourth

(Millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

1997

Revenue $1,530.7 $1,585.3 $1,621.4 $1,898.6 $6,636.0
Gross profit 515.7 538.4 575.0 604.5 2,233.6
Income (loss) before income taxes 30.6 66.5 80.8 (936.7) (758.8)
Net income (loss)* 19.3 41.9 50.9 (965.7) (853.6)
Dividends on preferred shares 30.1 27.8 26.6 26.6 111.1
Earnings (loss) on common shares (10.8) 14.1 24.3 (992.3) (964.7)
Earnings (loss) per common share – basic (.06) .08 .14 (4.75) (5.30)
Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted* (.06) .08 .13 (4.75) (5.30)
Market price per common share – high 75/8 8 .153/4 161/2 161/2

– low 61/4 53/4 .73/8 111/8 53/4

1996

Revenue $1,423.1 $1,505.0 $1,630.9 $1,811.5 $6,370.5
Gross profit 438.9 491.9 530.0 657.6 2,118.4
Income (loss) before income taxes (20.3) 8.0 21.5 84.5 93.7
Net income (loss) before extraordinary item (13.4) 5.3 14.2 55.7 61.8
Net income (loss) (13.4) 5.3 14.2 43.6 49.7
Dividends on preferred shares 30.2 30.2 30.2 30.2 120.8
Earnings (loss) on common shares (43.6) (24.9) (16.0) 13.4 (71.1)
Earnings (loss) per common share – basic

Before extraordinary item (.25) (.14) (.09) .15 (.34)
Extraordinary item (.07) (.07)

Total (.25) (.14) (.09) .08 (.41)

Earnings (loss) per common share – diluted
Before extraordinary item (.25) (.14) (.09) .14 (.34)
Extraordinary item (.06) (.07)

Total (.25) (.14) (.09) .08 (.41)

Market price per common share – high 73/4 91/8 71/4 73/4 91/8
– low 53/8 55/8 53/8 57/8 53/8

*In the fourth quarter of 1997, the company recorded one-time charges to net income of $1,052.6 million. Before these charges, fourth-quarter
net income was $86.9 million, or $.25 per diluted common share, and full-year net income was $199.0 million, or $.46 per diluted common
share. See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The individual quarterly per-common share amounts may not total to the per-common share amount for the full year because of accounting 
rules governing the computation of earnings per common share.

Market prices per common share are as quoted on the New York Stock Exchange composite listing.
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(Millions, except per share data) 1997(1) 1996 1995(1) 1994(1) 1993 1992 1991(1)

Results of operations

Revenue $6,636.0 $6,370.5 $6,342.3 $6,095.5 $ 6,107.1 $6,715.6 $ 6,908.8

Operating income (loss) (379.5) 327.4 (562.1) 271.7 698.7 688.2 (614.3)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes (758.8) 93.7 (781.1) 14.6 370.9 301.3 (1,425.6)

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before extraordinary items and changes 
in accounting principles (853.6) 61.8 (627.3) 12.1 286.3 166.3 (1,520.2)

Net income (loss) (853.6) 49.7 (624.6) 100.5 565.4 361.2 (1,393.3)

Dividends on preferred shares 111.1 120.8 120.3 120.1 121.6 122.1 121.2

Earnings (loss) on common shares (964.7) (71.1) (744.9) (19.6) 443.8 239.1 (1,514.5)

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 
per common share .

Basic (5.30) (.34) (4.37) (.63) 1.01 .27 (10.16)

Diluted (5.30) (.34) (4.37) (.63) .92 .27 (10.16)

Financial position

Working capital $ 309.1 $ 668.0 $ 71.3 $1,015.7 $ 681.0 $ 513.3 $ 384.3

Total assets 5,591.3 6,967.1 7,113.2 7,193.4 7,349.4 7,322.1 8,218.7

Long-term debt 1,438.3 2,271.4 1,533.3 1,864.1 2,025.0 2,172.8 2,694.6

Common stockholders’ equity(2) (214.2) 185.8 289.9 1,034.2 1,057.3 541.8 342.1

Common stockholders’ equity per share (.86) 1.06 1.69 6.05 6.21 3.35 2.12

Other data

Research and development $ 302.3 $ 342.9 $ 404.5 $ 458.5 $ 489.3 $ 505.6 $ 610.6

Capital additions of properties 179.9 162.3 195.0 208.2 173.5 227.0 222.7

Investment in marketable software 132.9 116.2 123.0 121.3 118.7 110.2 167.7

Depreciation 156.0 182.0 203.0 226.2 252.0 311.4 412.1

Amortization

Marketable software 97.0 101.6 151.7 150.5 144.6 131.8 241.0

Goodwill 963.9 46.1 40.9 36.9 36.7 36.8 246.6

Common shares outstanding (millions) 249.5 174.8 171.4 171.0 170.4 161.9 161.7

Stockholders of record (thousands) 37.3 39.2 41.5 45.3 47.8 51.7 54.6

Employees (thousands) 32.6 32.9 37.4 37.8 38.2 41.7 46.4

(1) Includes special pretax charges of $1,074.6 million, $846.6 million, $186.2 million, and $1,200.0 million for the years ended December 31, 1997, 
1995, 1994, and 1991, respectively.

(2) After deduction of cumulative preferred dividends in arrears in 1991, 1992, and 1993.

Seven-year summary of selected financial data

Customer revenue by business unit

Year ended December 31 (Millions) 1997 1996 1995

Information Services $ 2,056.0 31% $1,951.4 31% $1,836.8 29%

Global Customer Services 2,148.1 32 1,991.9 31 1,884.1 30

Computer Systems 2,431.9 37 2,427.2 38 2,621.4 41

Total $ 6,636.0 100% $6,370.5 100% $6,342.3 100%
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Chairman, President, and 
Chief Executive Officer
Lawrence A. Weinbach, 58
Chairman, president, and chief executive officer
since September 1997. Previously held position
of managing partner-chief executive, Andersen
Worldwide. A Unisys officer since 1997.

Group Presidents
Unisys Global Customer Services
Gerald A. Gagliardi, 50
Executive vice president and president, Unisys
Global Customer Services, since 1996. Previously
held positions of senior vice president and presi-
dent, Global Customer Services; vice president,
Customer Services Worldwide; and vice president
and general manager, Customer Services and
Support. A Unisys officer since 1994.

Unisys Computer Systems
George R. Gazerwitz, 57
Executive vice president and president, Unisys
Computer Systems, since 1996. Previously held
positions of executive vice president of Nihon
Unisys, Ltd.; vice president, marketing, and
president, Customer Services and Support, U. S.
Information Systems; and vice president, manu-
facturing, Burroughs. A Unisys officer since 1984.

Unisys Information Services
Lawrence C. Russell, 59
Executive vice president and president,
Unisys Information Services, since 1995.
Previously served as an officer at The First
Manhattan Consulting Group. Also held positions
of chairman and chief executive officer of Palaru
Corporation and officer of The Boston Consulting
Group. A Unisys officer since 1995.

Executive Management

Other Elected Officers
Senior Vice Presidents

David O. Aker, 51
Senior vice president, Worldwide Human
Resources. A Unisys officer since 1995.

Harold S. Barron, 61
Senior vice president and general counsel since
1993 and secretary since 1994. A Unisys officer
since 1991.

Jack A. Blaine, 53
Senior vice president and president, Unisys
Pacific Asia Americas, since 1996. A Unisys officer
since 1988.

Robert H. Brust, 54
Senior vice president and chief financial officer.
A Unisys officer since 1997.

Dewaine L. Osman, 63
Senior vice president, strategic development,
since 1997. A Unisys officer from 1986-1991;
reelected in 1992.

Vice Presidents

Janet Brutschea Haugen, 39
Vice president and controller. A Unisys officer
since 1996.

James F. McGuirk II, 54
Vice president and president, Unisys Federal
Systems. A Unisys officer since 1996.

Jack F. McHale, 49
Vice president, Investor Relations. A Unisys
officer since 1986.

Angus F. Smith, 56
Vice president and treasurer. A Unisys officer
since 1997.




